A message
from our
President
and Chief
Executive
Officer
For two centuries we have worked to create high
impact, enduring social change at all levels of society,
through work with individuals to help them out of
disadvantage or through advocacy and influence to
change the very nature of our country.
The issue of ‘impact’ is important to our supporters,
governments and the people with whom we work.
Making a difference is central to the work of each and
every one of our people, both employees and
volunteers; it drives everything we do and while we may
not always get it right, we have made a candid attempt
to answer the question, “are we making a difference” in
this Annual Report. It is not an easy question to answer.
We work in the unpredictable world of human lives, and
in communities where an intricate interplay of factors
often compounds to create complex social problems.
We manage this uncertainty by informing our work with
evaluation, evidence and research to demonstrate
whether what we’re doing is making a positive difference
to the lives of our clients and communities.

We believe that we
can make a difference.
We believe in the power of communities
to create a healthy, fair, just society for all
Australians. We believe in an Australia where
no one feels that he or she does not belong.
environment in which to develop. We know that we
need to build a culture of entrepreneurship within our
organisation; without it, our innovation agenda will be at
risk. Equally, financial support from a wide range of
sources, individuals, corporations, foundations and
government is vital for us to be able to deliver on our
promise and we are grateful to all of our supporters for
their backing and dedication to our ideals.
The past year has been less fraught with economic
uncertainty and with prudent management, we emerged
from the global financial crisis in a healthy position,
which has allowed us to maintain our strategic course
and explore exciting new opportunities. This would not
be possible without the selfless service, loyalty and
passion from all our people: our staff, volunteers,
donors, funding partners, management team and Board
of Directors. We sincerely thank you all for your
contribution to creating caring and inclusive communities
and a just society.

In the past year we have focused on building our public
profile and extending our reach. Our continued growth
has a clear purpose: to reach more people in more
places, bringing our experience and resources to
disadvantaged communities that are at risk of being left
behind. A stronger presence also gives us a broader
platform for our advocacy work, allowing us to speak out
more forcefully on the social issues that affect the
communities and people with whom we work.

2010 marks two centuries since Lachlan Macquarie
became Governor of New South Wales. He is the
founding Patron of The Benevolent Society and to this
day, his fearless and visionary leadership inspires us.
As our own bicentenary approaches in 2013 we have
renewed our commitment to “making a difference” in
many communities across Australian society. We hope
that this Annual Report gives you some insight into how
we think and in what we believe. We would love to hear
from you.

Our ‘on the ground’ services are invaluable to the people
they support, but working with one person at a time will
not lead to systemic change. Working with whole
communities is the way to really make a difference, but it
calls for new thinking and new approaches. Innovation
does not happen in a vacuum. Most great ideas take
shape in an incomplete form and they need the right

Sam Weiss
President

Richard Spencer
Chief Executive Officer
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2010 snapshot
The Benevolent Society operates from 56 locations. We employ
800 staff, who are assisted by 690 volunteers. Our programs and
services are grouped under five core areas of expertise: children
and families (including domestic violence), ageing, community
development, mental health care and Social Leadership Australia.

Where our government
funds come from
Federal 35%

20%
15%

In the past year we provided support to more than 31,000
people. More than 700 people and 200 organisations participated
in our community development projects. A further 500 people
from business, government and non-profit organisations took
part in one of our Social Leadership Australia programs.

2%

10%
36%

10%

NSW 56%

Change in client numbers
11601

Federal Department of Health & Ageing
Federal Department of Families, Housing,
Community Services & Indigenous Affairs
NSW Community Services
NSW Department of Ageing,
Disability & Home Care
NSW Health
QLD Office for Early Childhood
Education and Care
QLD Department of Communities

Financial Year 2005–2006
Financial Year 2009–2010
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5729
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2291

388
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447

How we spend our funds
25

34.9%

20

This chart shows changes in client numbers over a four year period. It shows changes in numbers of families (rather than
children and adults) for our child and family services to enable direct comparison of figures between the two census years.
It does not include numbers for our Communities for Children and Partnerships in Early Childhood programs.

Number of locations
Number of staff
Number of volunteers

2009

2008

(000’s)

(000’s)

122

124

82

56

48

42

798

698

783

690

600

700

$61,667

$59,880

$55,244

Private funding

$2,661

$2,160

$2,826

Investment income

$3,685

$2,953

$4,749

$87,122

$80,622

$84,830

Total revenue

Net assets

15
19.1%
$ Million

Number of services

2010
(000’s)

29.1%

10

10.2%

5
3.5%

0

3.2%

Mental Health

166 295

Social Leadership

Personal Helpers &
Mentors Program

Post adoption

Women’s health

Carelink

Community care

Families

294

Residential aged care

0

0

Social Leadership
Australia

1932
1098

Other

1951

Financial inclusion

2000

3427

3290

Community
Development

3900

4000

Ageing

6000

Child & Family

12000

QLD 9%

7%

Our vision is to make a long-term difference
by inspiring people to create positive change
for themselves.

04 About
About
usUs

Annual Report 2010

05

Our purpose
By speaking out about the issues that matter to us, and drawing on our
experience and credibility, we influence governments and other decision
makers to make Australia a fairer, safer place for all.
We believe older people should be able to lead full and meaningful
lives and participate in community life, whatever their stage of life
or state of health.
We’re calling for a fundamental rethink about the options available to people in
later life, especially in relation to models of housing, care and support.
Read about Apartments for Life on page 11.

People want to feel they belong: it’s a basic
human need. When we feel alienated and
isolated, we tend to drift to the fringes of society
and are at far greater risk of experiencing social,
mental and physical problems.
For two centuries, The Benevolent Society has
recognised the importance of community. We
understand that when people belong, they feel
they have worth. We can’t build strong
communities for people, but we can be a
catalyst for them to take action themselves, by
providing leadership training, resources and
long-term support.
Our direct support services provide vital help
every day to individuals, but won’t change the
status quo. To drive systemic change we have
to do things differently. That’s why we invest in
innovation and research, advocate on policy
issues we feel passionate about and make
evaluation a priority to show what works.
We haven’t got all the answers but we have
started to get measurable results.
See page 21 for a detailed report on our performance.

“It has been wonderful
being part of a group
and feeling accepted by
the broader community.”
“The chance to socialise
with other young people
like me...alleviates my
loneliness every
Saturday night.”
Client Satisfaction Survey

We believe every child has the right to a good start in life.
Our investment in children must be focused on the early years. We’re calling for
the introduction of a universal 52 week paid parental leave scheme in Australia
and free preschool education from three years of age. We also supported the
Adoption Amendment (Same Sex Couples) Bill 2010 (No 2) which has now been
adopted into law in New South Wales.
Read about our role in GoodStart on page 11 and find out more about our neuroplasticity research project Shaping
Brains, Shaping Communities on page 13.

Rethinking housing, care and
support options for older people

“And now I’m away I’m
free and I’m so scared
for my children
because I don’t want
them being hurt the
way I was you know...”

We believe all people have the right to live safely,
free from violence.

No Way to Live research report

We believe non-profit organisations are essential
to a healthy democracy.

One in three Australian women experience domestic violence during their lives,
while one in five are sexually abused. This has to stop. Governments, business
and non-profit organisations, communities and individuals all have an obligation
to work together to prevent and respond to violence against women.
See page 13 to read about No Way To Live, a research study on the Family Law Court experiences of women who
have separated from a violent relationship.

The non-profit sector has a unique role to play. We can demonstrate leadership
through ethical and accountable behaviour and we can identify new solutions to
social issues by promoting collaboration between communities, the non-profit,
government and private sectors. We call on all sectors to work productively
together to improve the lives of those in disadvantaged communities.
Read about Social Leadership Australia’s unique collaboration with National Australia Bank on page 14 and see
page 12 for more about Growing Communities Together, our partnership with the people of Bankstown in Sydney’s
South West.
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The social challenges
we’re addressing

What we do

Profound social changes over
the past few decades have
created complex, multilayered issues for society. At
the heart of the problem is a
breakdown in the
relationships and connections
that make a positive
difference in people’s lives.

We meet the specific needs of
individuals through our direct
support services, and we work
with whole communities,
connecting people across
gender, age and cultural divides
to create a renewed sense of
optimism and belonging.

Focus areas for our services

Our goal is to bring about
lasting change so our clients
can overcome the barriers
preventing them from
participating fully in society.

In the past 12 months we helped:

When disadvantage and
mistrust becomes entrenched
in a community, the effects
multiply, leading to higher
rates of unemployment,
crime, drug and alcohol use,
depression, poor health,
violence and discrimination.
Research shows that
disadvantage is concentrated
in certain geographical
locations and socio-economic
status makes a difference.
Our efforts focus on building
strong, healthy communities
where people can thrive.
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We support vulnerable, disadvantaged people in 56 communities in New South
Wales and Queensland. The largest area of our work is with children and
families, including foster care, child protection, early intervention and training
other non-profit workers (capacity building). We also provide mental health
services, community aged care programs, carer respite, domestic violence
services, and post-adoption support. Our Social Leadership programs are run in
New South Wales, Queensland and Victoria. We work with people from all
backgrounds, including Indigenous Australians and people from culturally and
linguistically diverse communities.
• 8,433 children and their parents/carers through our child and family services
•	6,023 adults and/or their carers through our community care, respite and food
services and Personal Helpers and Mentors Program
• 11,601 carers through our Carelink Centre
• 2,291 individuals through our Post Adoption support services
• 1,932 individuals through our domestic violence and women’s health services
• 161 older people as residents of our hostels and villages
• 295 individuals through our financial inclusion service.
We provided indirect assistance to a further 12,347 children and adults through
our Communities for Children and Partnerships in Early Childhood programs.

Building stronger families and communities

Children & families:
12–15% of Australian children live in poverty.
177,000 children under the age of 18 were reported abused or neglected
(2007 estimate).
15% of children (619,000 children) lived in jobless families in 2009. Living in
a jobless family increases the probability that a child will have behavioural or
emotional problems by 13%.
One-fifth of parents have poor mental health.

Ten years ago we
operated out of
19 locations in one
state. We now work
out of 56 locations
in three States.

Our approach
Our unique blend of service delivery, research, innovation and advocacy has
been a hallmark of The Benevolent Society for nearly two centuries. We take a
community-centred approach, delivering effective, evidence-based services
supported by research and evaluation. Using innovative practice, we help to
rebuild communities where everyone feels they have a place. Through advocacy
and strong leadership we are driving positive change in social policy to create a
fairer Australia.

Our work
34%

28%

One-fifth of children live with a parent with a disability.

Child and Family

23% of women experienced violence by a partner.

Ageing

Older people:

Community Development

The number of older Australians in housing stress increased by 30%
between 2003 and 2007.

Mental Health
Social Leadership Australia

Dementia is projected to affect 981,000 people by 2050, an increase from
257,000 people in 2010.

Indigenous Australians:
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children are 2–3 times more likely to die
or be of low birth weight, 8–9 times more likely to be in the child protection
system and 24 times more likely to be in juvenile justice supervision.

Other
14%
17%
3%

4%
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About us

Our history
The Benevolent Society is Australia’s first charity.
In less than three years we will celebrate our
Bicentenary. We are determined to mark this
significant milestone with more than just festivities.
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Since our earliest days we have advocated for positive social change and
progressive social policy. We have a strong track record of pioneering social
welfare reform, and this legacy informs our work today.
1820

First voluntary district nursing for mothers

1879

Lobbied for free legal aid

1895

Lobbied for the old age pension,
(introduced in 1901, the first of its kind in the world)

1905

First women’s hospital in Australia – Royal Hospital for Women

1999

Sydney Leadership – our program to create leaders for change

2002

Social Ventures Australia – supporting social entrepreneurs

2007

Opened North Gold Coast Early Years Centre – the first in Queensland

2009

Launched Queensland Leadership
Jointly founded GoodStart, a consortium of four leading non-profits,
to acquire ABC Learning childcare centres

2013

Bicentenary

Our unique approach combines advocacy, research and service delivery, giving
a voice to the disadvantaged and driving policy change while implementing
innovative services ‘on the ground’.
Just like our founding Patron, we’re passionate about creating a better, fairer
Australia built on strong communities where everyone feels they have a place.

Mitchell Library, State Library of New South Wales

Two hundred years ago,
Lachlan Macquarie arrived in
Sydney to take up his position
as the Fifth Governor of New
South Wales. A man of principle
and compassion, he introduced
an ambitious program of public
works and created the
beginnings of our social
infrastructure. He took a
particular interest in the welfare
of children and the destitute.
His support of our founder
Edward Smith Hall in
establishing The Benevolent
Society, and his role as our
founding Patron, remains one of
his most enduring legacies.
Macquarie is remembered for
his visionary leadership, his
unflinching integrity, his care for
those in need and his humanity.
Those principles continue to
inspire our work today.
Visit www.bensoc.org.au to find out more about our
history and Macquarie’s legacy.

Philanthropy is the pathway to finding new
solutions to old problems.

10 Innovation
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Why innovation matters
Aged care that puts happiness first
By 2040 the number of people aged over 65 will almost double, but the
number of workers or taxpayers to support them will halve. This will challenge
the nation’s ability to deliver appropriate care and housing for older people.
That’s why we’re pioneering a new approach: purpose-built apartments
located around thriving community hubs that will allow older people to ‘age in
place’ and avoid costly, unwelcome moves to nursing homes.
We began planning ‘Apartments for Life’ at our site in Ocean Street, Bondi in
2006. Over the last three years we have submitted two Development
Applications to Waverley Council. We made significant revisions to our plans
following a lengthy community engagement process but were unable to reach
agreement with Council on a final plan. This left us with no option but to take
our plans to the Land and Environment Court (LEC).

There’s no quick fix for the social issues we come
up against. Significant quantifiable social impact
can take decades to materialise, yet government
funding is often based on a three year cycle. This
can limit our capacity to innovate.
We have set an ambitious fundraising target to
increase the support we generate through private
philanthropy. We believe this is the most effective
way to fund the new approaches that are needed
to radically shift the way disadvantage is
addressed in this country.
Our long experience in service delivery combined
with our research work places us in a good
position to develop new approaches, but we will
need substantial funding from a blend of sources
to see results. We will also continue to build a
culture of innovation and entrepreneurship within
our organisation.
We are prepared to do what’s needed to drive
policy changes on the issues we’re passionate
about. We don’t know yet if all our ideas will work,
but early results are promising.

Details of all our current
programs and services, including
those launched in the past 12
months, can be found in the
‘what we do’ section of our
website at www.bensoc.org.au

In May 2010 the LEC approved the project, citing its substantial social
benefits. Senior Commissioner Tim Moore approved the project largely based
on favourable consideration of the social aspects of Apartments for Life.
This decision reinforces our belief that Apartments for Life will deliver
considerable benefits for residents, older people, the Waverley community
and the aged care and health sector. We are committed to the high levels of
affordable and social housing. At the time of writing we are looking at the
novel philanthropic financing arrangement used in the GoodStart joint venture
as a possible solution.
Visit www.bensoc.org.au for more information about ‘Apartments for Life’ at Ocean Street.

Helping older people to age
well in their own community

The Benevolent Society was
listed at number two in the top
ten leading organisations in
aged care and Apartments for
Life was described as “a
groundbreaking development
promising more choice to
ageing Australians”.
Aged Care INsite

Transforming childcare in Australia
When ABC Learning, Australia’s largest for-profit childcare provider, went
into receivership shockwaves were felt around the country. We saw it as a
once-in-a-generation opportunity and joined Social Ventures Australia,
Mission Australia and the Brotherhood of St Laurence in creating GoodStart,
a non-profit consortium. In 2010, GoodStart successfully purchased more
than 600 ABC Learning Centres.
The GoodStart investment model heralds a new approach which we hope
will become a template for funding other large-scale social businesses. The
project attracted an unusual mix of commercial funding from the National
Australia Bank, social capital investment from philanthropists, a Government
loan and cash support from the non-profit partners, creating the largest social
enterprise in Australia.
We are not driven by profit motives: we took this step for a clear social
purpose. The surplus generated from operations will be invested back into
the curriculum development, bringing life to GoodStart’s vision to give
Australian children the best possible start in life.
Find out more at www.childcare.com.au/goodstart-childcare-limited

12 Innovation

Annual Report 2010

13

Why innovation matters
Together we are strong

Shaping Brains: Shaping Communities

Where we live shapes our lives. Research shows that people are
healthier and happier when they have strong social networks, access
to education and employment and actively participate in community life.
Our vision is for every community in Australia to be healthy, safe and
inclusive. Growing Communities Together is our response to this
challenge.

‘Neuroplasticity’ is the way our brain cells adapt and re-arrange themselves
throughout life. It’s an exciting area of scientific research with important
implications for early childhood learning and development. Shaping Brains:
Shaping Communities is a research study we developed to apply this
knowledge to practice. Our researcher, Margaret Brechman-Toussaint,
travelled overseas to meet experts and visit organisations who are already
applying neuroplasticity research in their children’s services.

Our aim is to create an approach that will work in any location across
Australia, but our starting place is closer to home: Bankstown and
Greenacre, in south-west Sydney. Local residents are proud of the
strong multicultural identity of the area and there are many positives
about living there, however there are also underlying issues such as
youth gang culture, unemployment, housing stress and social isolation.
Growing Communities Together is about hearing the voices of the
community. It’s a partnership. We’re working with residents, existing
service providers, schools and local businesses in an ambitious ‘whole
of community’ approach.
A key element is our Social Cohesion Index, a tool for measuring social
inclusion. This is a research ‘first’ for Australia and will demonstrate how
things have changed over the long-term.

We’re now piloting seven programs based on neuroplasticity principles
which will be delivered at two TBS sites. Amongst the seven is one
program that helps children in foster care develop skills to facilitate a
smooth transition to school by strengthening neural-pathways. The other
program is delivered in a playgroup format using the Changing Brains DVD
developed by Professor Helen Neville from Oregon State University. We’re
teaching parents to use everyday interactions and play to promote different
aspects of brain development.
Charles Obeid (r) owner of Greenacre’s Al Aseel
restaurant, one of the stops on our our Middle
Eastern Treats Taste Tour

Find out more at www.strongcommunities.org.au

Taste is a suite of activities designed to showcase the multicultural
food traditions of Bankstown and Greenacre in south-west Sydney.
From walking tours to recipes to cooking classes and cookbooks, all
our projects are designed to give something back to the local
community. Our food tours are set up as a social enterprise and offer
a great ‘foodie’ experience while also generating income for local
businesses and creating jobs and training opportunities for residents.
Visit www.tastetours.org.au to find out more and to book a tour.

Wheel Works
Our Wheel Works project is inspired by local kids in Bankstown who have been
telling us there aren’t enough activities to get involved in after school.
Wheel Works is a bike, skateboard and scooter building project aimed at nine to
17 year olds. It gives young people access to workshops to build their own set of
‘wheels’. They get to keep what they’ve made, and they give 20 hours back to
the project to help another young person. We also bring in mentors who work in
the car and bike industry. Building and fixing bikes and scooters is fun and gives
young people a shared experience. It also helps with bonding across ages and
cultures and teaches them useful skills that may help them get jobs later in life.
A big thank you to the volunteers at Western Sydney Cycling Network, based at
Fairfield Showground in Prairiewood for their invaluable contribution to the project.
Wheel Works: bringing young
people of Bankstown area together

Margaret Brechman-Toussaint uses
everyday objects to strengthen
children’s focused attention skills

We believe we are the first organisation in Australia to make programs of
this nature available free of charge to socio-economically disadvantaged
and vulnerable children. We thank the Margaret Pemberton Foundation for
their generous financial support.
Read Margaret’s study tour blog at http://shapingbrains.wordpress.com/

Speaking out about domestic violence
Women living with domestic violence need immediate help in times of crisis
and long-term support to rebuild their lives. As well as providing this support
we also have to speak out about this issue and attack the root causes.
Research is one way we are addressing systemic issues. No Way to Live is the
first study that allows women experiencing domestic violence to speak
in-depth about the impact of the Family Law Act changes introduced in 2006.
The research is a partnership between The Benevolent Society, St George
Domestic Violence Committee, the University of Sydney, and South Eastern
Sydney Illawarra Area Health Service. We want to contribute to reforming a
system which is failing to protect women and children from harm.
We are also working on an advocacy campaign to highlight the harm suffered
by children who live in violent homes. Programs such as Kids Create
Tomorrow developed by our Centre for Women’s Health, provide insight into
the extent of the problem. We’re exploring the most effective way to take
action, such as lobbying for legislative change and educating legal
professionals to be advocates for children.
Visit the Resources section of our website at www.bensoc.org.au to read the No Way to Live report

In Australia, one in three women will
be assaulted or abused in her lifetime

“So my younger [child] saw him
beating me and he was in the
stairwell and he kept hiding his
head...he kept telling me
‘mummy wake up’…”
No Way to Live research report

14 Innovation

Working on the ‘why’ of leadership
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Social Leadership Australia (SLA) has introduced a fearless approach to learning
that disrupts traditional thinking and empowers leaders with tools to bring about
lasting change. Unique in Australia, our world-class programs employ the
Adaptive Leadership approach developed by Professor Ron Heifetz at Harvard
University. We take this powerful model to a new level by teaching in the ‘real
world’ not in a classroom.
Social Leadership Australia invites a connection with a bigger sense of purpose.
Participants in our programs are challenged to ask themselves, ‘what matters?’,
‘what do I believe in?’ and ‘how can I take responsibility to make things
different?’. It’s an approach which offers powerful and effective solutions to
entrenched, complex problems for which there is no textbook answer.

SLA turns the notion that leaders are
‘born not made’ on its head

“People ask, ‘NAB has really
become serious about…the
issues facing Indigenous
Australia – how did that
happen?’ And I think one of
most important things we’ve
done is Accelerate (an SLA-run
program) which has opened the
eyes of our leaders to the
practical challenge, the ethical
challenge, the leadership
challenge of Indigenous
disadvantage.”
Tim O’Leary, General Manager, Community
and Corporate Responsibility, National
Australia Bank

It was this unique approach which first caught the attention of the National
Australia Bank (NAB) in 2007. So began an unusual relationship between
Australia’s oldest charity and one of the country’s largest financial institutions.
Almost 500 NAB employees have now graduated from our custom-designed
leadership programs. We believe this work is helping to bring about
transformational, enterprise-level change within the bank.
We invite other companies to follow NAB’s lead and work with SLA to create
positive change for your employees, your company and the communities in
which you operate. We can develop a tailored leadership development approach
to suit your needs.
Contact Geoff Aigner, Senior Manager Development on 02 9339 8000 to discuss our customised social leadership
programs. Visit www.bensoc.org.au for details of the complete range of Social Leadership Australia programs and
sponsorship opportunities.

The Social Leadership Australia Alumni Network
Over the past 11 years, our Social Leadership Australia programs have created
an Alumni group of nearly 400 graduates. Some are actively involved in highly
visible community projects, helping to shift public thinking and creating new
opportunities for people living on the margins of society. We need to do a better
job supporting our Alumni program and our priority for 2010 is to reinvigorate
and harness the power of these leaders more effectively. We know they can play
a vital role in achieving our vision of social change.
Contact Christopher Saunders, SLA Community Manager, on 02 9339 8000 to find out more about our
Alumni program.

Our ability to attract and retain great people and
to maintain and grow a diverse, secure financial
base is the secret to our longevity.
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Our staff and volunteers
Our staff are vitally important to achieving our purpose. The work
they do is rewarding, but it is also demanding and difficult. That’s
why we are constantly looking for ways to improve how we
support them.
Listening and responding
More than two-thirds of our staff responded to a survey conducted by external
researchers from Macquarie University’s VOICE project. The overall results
were excellent. Several areas rated slightly higher than the previous survey in
2007 and there were no areas where our performance rated as poor. However
we know there is still room for improvement.
See page 26 for more details.

The commitment and passion of our people
underpins everything we do.
Our staff and volunteers ensure our clients get the
best possible care and make our donors and
partners feel supported and valued. The skills and
governance of our Board and Company Members
guide us in our mission to create a fairer Australia.
To support this work, we seek funding from a
range of sources. We have good relationships
with all levels of government, and we believe
government has an important role to play in
funding the non-profit sector to deliver
community-based services.
Trust and foundation grants have helped us to
develop and trial new ideas and build an
evidence-base. We are also forging long-term
partnerships with the private sector, which we
hope will take our major innovation projects from
the drawing board to delivery and then to scale.

The Benevolent Society is a
signatory to the National
Compact, an agreement
between the government
and the non-profit sector
(also known as the Third
Sector) which aims to give
community organisations
input into government policy
and program delivery and
enable collaboration on
social, economic and
environmental challenges.

Recognition and pay equity
In response to the VOICE survey results we are developing a new
remuneration policy based on principles of fairness and equity and rewards for
performance behaviour, potential and sustainability. We also supported the
Pay Equity Claim currently before Fair Work Australia in recognition of the
value of the work done by our employees.

Managing change
Upgrading the technology infrastructure required to support our people and
organisation is ever more critical as we grow. We have put in place a Change
Management Framework and we are introducing new business and IT
systems, including videoconferencing, e-learning and a new Intranet. We’re
also reviewing how we collect and manage client information across our
organisation, as part of our commitment to make working life easier for all our
people. Upgrading our customer relationship management systems will bring
greater consistency to our reporting to funders, improve how we coordinate
our data and build an ‘evidence base’ that offers greater depth of analysis.
This new approach will also simplify and standardise our processes.

Our volunteers
We know from our own experience the immense value volunteers bring to an
organisation and to the people they support. We don’t have the workforce to
meet all the needs of our clients, so volunteers are a vital additional resource,
helping us to extend our reach in many different ways. The more successfully we
engage with our volunteers, the more likely it is that we will achieve our objectives.
We also know that high levels of volunteer engagement indicate a healthy
community. That’s why we’re putting so much effort into recruiting volunteers with
diverse skills and from different backgrounds. We offer a wide range of
opportunities for people of all ages to get involved in our work, and we provide
excellent training and support.
It is always difficult to single out individual volunteers for special mention, but we
would like to acknowledge the First Five Years Committee, in particular outgoing
Chair Lynn Fern, for their extraordinary efforts on our behalf. Over the past seven
years, the Committee has raised more than $750,000 to support our work.
Visit www.bensoc.org.au to find out more about volunteering opportunities with The Benevolent Society.

In the past year we have
focused on recruiting new
volunteers from diverse
backgrounds, addressing
training and risk management,
responding to emerging trends
and issues and ensuring our
volunteers feel recognised,
supported and valued.
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Our funding sources
Wendy Cabot, Network Manager, Brighter Futures New England
Wendy Cabot has vivid memories of her first day with The Benevolent Society. ‘It
was a Wednesday in November 2006’ she says ‘and I was petrified. I remember
wondering if we’d really be ready to open the doors to clients in six months. We
didn’t even have an office!’.
Wendy previously worked in child and family health with Tamworth Community
Health and was attracted by the energy and optimism of The Benevolent Society
at a time when drought-affected rural communities were still doing it tough. Four
years on, she’s still passionate about the early intervention support the program
offers to families with young children. ‘I love our child-focused approach. It’s all
about creating the right environment for families to thrive. I really like the fact that
we are able to work with clients for as long as they need us there’.

Wendy Cabot, Network Manager,
Brighter Futures New England

We acknowledge the
generous support of
our major corporate
partners:
Growing Communities
Together

Over the last few years we have refined our process for deciding what
government funded projects we will apply for and we have a filtering system that
helps us to assess funding opportunities against our strategic objectives.

Saver Plus

We manage our government funding carefully and we understand the
importance of accountability. We report regularly on the outcomes of our work,
not only through the standard acquittal process, but also through personal
meetings, evaluation and research work and by showcasing the stories and
successes of the clients we help.
We acknowledge the support of the following State and Commonwealth
Government departments and agencies in delivering our programs and services.

Australian Government
Apartments for Life

Department of Families, Housing, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs (FaHCSIA)
Department of Health and Ageing (DoHA)
Department of Immigration and Citizenship (DIAC)
Family Assistance Office (FAO)

New South Wales Government

Nell Morgan, 2009 President’s Award recipient
At the age when most of us would probably be winding back our activities and
relaxing, Nell Morgan has taken a rather different approach. She has been
volunteering for Northern Beaches Food Services since May 1992 and shows no
signs of slowing down!

Queensland Leadership

Nell embodies the volunteer spirit. She knows that it’s more than just about
delivering food. She takes a personal interest in all the clients on her run and
knows them well enough to stay and have a chat and report on an overgrown
backyard or whatever else she can do to help. She helps our volunteer drivers by
coming into the office early to work out every client’s special requirements and
instructions and with the aid of her magnifying glass she ensures accurate and
seamless deliveries.

NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet
Corrective Services NSW
Department of Ageing, Disability and Home Care (DADHC)
Department of Human Services NSW, Community Services
Department of Community Services Area Assistance Scheme (DoCSAAS)
Department of Education and Training (DET)
North Sydney Central Coast Health Service (NSCCAHS)
South Eastern Sydney and Illawarra Area Health Service (SESIAHS)
Sydney South West Area Health Service (SSWAHS)

Queensland Government
Department of Communities
Department of Education and Training
Department of Premier and Cabinet

We congratulate Nell on her award and we thank her for her dedication and
commitment to us and to her local community.
Introduced in 1994, the President’s Award acknowledges a volunteer whose selfless and
generous contribution of time, skills, support and care makes a significant and tangible
difference to the lives of the people we support.

Donors can direct their gifts to support a particular area of our work, or they can
allow us to direct their untied funds to the area of greatest need. We provide
different fundraising options to allow everyone an opportunity to give, whatever
their motivation and whatever their budget. Corporate partnerships are also
contributing significantly to our fundraising activities as businesses seek to take
more responsibility for the impact of their activities within communities.

Working with Government

In 2008, Wendy was awarded a staff scholarship to our Sydney Leadership
Program. ‘Friends have told me I’ve changed’ she says. ‘It was both a privilege
and a challenge to explore what it means to really exercise leadership. To
understand others you have to first understand yourself.’ How does she think she’s
changed? She feels she is more willing to challenge sterotypes and to be more
assertive, which flows through in a positive way to her work with families.
Wendy is also now responsible for the Personal Helpers and Mentors Program in
Armadale, which supports people living with mental health issues, and there are
other opportunities for growth on the horizon. So what does the future hold? ‘There
are so many things we want to do, but we need a period of consolidation first’ she
says. ‘We need to find out what the community wants so we can work out how we
can best respond. Building better, stronger communities is what it’s all about’.

The groundbreaking projects showcased in previous pages would
not exist without the support of our diverse financial partners.
Relying on Government funding for all our work is not an option.

Our President Sam Weiss presents
Nell Morgan with her award

We are also grateful for funding and other support from local Councils
and from our research partners.
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Thanking our supporters

We would like to express our profound gratitude to all our donors. Your commitment to our work is inspiring and directly
benefits the most disadvantaged members of our society. We are also sincerely grateful to everyone who provided goods
and pro bono professional services during the year. We appreciate your generosity. We’d especially like to thank:
A W Tyree Foundation
Robert & Elizabeth Albert
AMP Foundation Charitable Trust
Anglo Coal
ANZ Bank
ANZ Staff Foundation
Art & The Dreaming
Baker & Mackenzie
Geoffrey Bazzan & Georgia Cleary
Bécasse
Patricia Beckett
Luca & Anita Belgiorno-Nettis
Amina Belgiorno-Nettis
Marco & Angela Belgiorno-Zegna
Beresfield Bowling Club Co-Op Ltd
Peter Brereton
Brisbane City Council
Robert Bromwich
Keith & Lesley Bryant
Laurence Butler
Ramesh Chinnappa
Jinnie Chowdry
Cockatoo Island Art Exhibition
Chrissy Comino
City of Sydney
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
Jim Davidson AO
Ian Davidson
De Costi Seafoods
Deutsche Bank AG
Robert Dick
Diggers Garden Group Inc
Jim Douglas
East Maitland Bowling Club
Eastern Suburbs Law Society
Shula Endrey-Walder OAM
James & Jacqui Erskine
Estate of the Late John Anthony Gilbert
Estate of the Late Susan Elizabeth Rutherford
Maria Evans
Jean Ewen
Danette Fenton-Menzies
Terry & Lynn Fern
The Financial Planning Association of Australia
Limited, Sydney Chapter
First Five Years Committee
Albert Flick
D M Foster
Friends of Scarba Committee
Judith Fudge
Galaxy Research
Joseph Garvin
John & Lea Gattorna
Alwyn Geyer
Grant Family Charitable Trust
Tony Green & Sophie McCarthy
Greg Weight
Syd Grover
David Hardie
Evelyn Harris

Allen Harroothunian
Philippa G Harvie
Bill & Alison Hayward
David Heim
Thomas Henley
Henry Davis York
Louise Herron
Anne Hill
Janet Holmes à Court AC
David Hooke
Intimo Lingerie
ITS Management
Jardine Lloyd Thompson
J A Wales
Edmund Jebb
John Barnes Foundation
Johnson & Johnson Medical Pty Ltd
Avinash Joshi
Aileen Kadison OAM
Catherine Kater AM
Simon Kerr
Kezik Pty Ltd
Robert S Larke
Kevin & Joyce Lawler
Liangrove Foundation Pty Ltd
Liverpool Street Gallery
Sharryn Llewellyn
James Lockhart
Steve Macchi
Mallesons Stephen Jaques
Maple-Brown Abbott Limited
Maple-Brown Family Charitable Foundation Ltd
Margaret Pemberton Foundation
Marion Maxwell
Michael Meek
Herbert W Menka
Monica Miland
Molly Blooms
Graeme & Margaret Morgan
Morgan Stanley
Marian Moufarrige
Catherine Moxham
Ken Mullins
Ross & Sara Lane
Myer Community Fund
Philip Myles
N & M Hurll Charitable Trust
Naked Communications
Ben Nastasi
National Australia Bank
Michael Neustein
New Haven Funerals Pty Ltd
Justin North
Norton Rose Australia
Adrienne O’Brien
Graham & Glynn O’Neill
Optiver
Denis Oram
OrotonGroup
Tony O’Sullivan

Pandanus Projects
Marita Port
Pernod Ricard
John & Jean Plummer
Jamie Prell
Purves Environmental Fund
qualia
Hugh Ralston AM & Jan Ralston
RBS Australia
Mark Richmond
Robert Christie Foundation
Robsons Excavations Finance Pty Limited
Jenny Rose
David & Sophie Rothery
B P Saunders
Scanlon Foundation
Scarba Volunteers Family Fund
Anne-Marie Sirca
Andy Small
Agnes Smith
W H Southcott
Southern Security Alarms
Richard Spencer & Emily Booker
Start It Up Foundation
Starz on Stage
Val G Steward
Suncorp
Sydney Gay and Lesbian Business Association
Sydney Opera House
Alastair Taylor
The Caledonia Foundation
The Corio Foundation
The Courier Mail
The Freedman Foundation
The K & G Gluck Trust
The Walter & Eliza Hall Trust
Tim Fairfax Family Foundation
Travel the World Pty Ltd
Helen Tribe
Unitech IT Solutions
Vasse Felix
Vic’s Meat
Vincent Fairfax Family Foundation
Vinta Group
Vivente
Janet Wahlquist
Scott & Nikki Walters
Jilly Warren
Bill & Heather Webster
Sam & Judy Weiss
Gough Whitlam AC QC
WLM Financial Services
Justin Wood
Yello

We are placing greater emphasis on building
our national reach and profile and on innovation
and advocacy.
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Our Purpose 2009-2012
Strategic Goals and Outcomes

Our results

How well are we performing?
We are social pioneers & innovators.

Our purpose is to create caring & inclusive communities & a just society.
STRATEGIC
GOAL 1

STRATEGIC
GOAL 2

STRATEGIC
GOAL 3

STRATEGIC
GOAL 4

Results In Communities

National Influence

Boldness & Innovation

Growth, Infrastructure
& Sustainability

OUTCOMES

OUTCOMES

OUTCOMES

OUTCOMES

1.1
New and
extensive
involvement in
communities
to address
need

Creating social impact calls for good planning
and preparation as well as leadership and
innovation. In 2010 we launched a three year
Strategic Plan with four platforms: community,
influence, innovation and capacity building.
By investing in the people and systems we need
to do our work, we will build leadership
capabilities that match the passion of our people
with the skills they need to be effective. We are
also focusing on strengthening our ‘voice’ and
broadening our reach so that we can claim the
right to speak on a national platform about the
social issues we’re addressing.
Measuring our impact is important because it
helps us understand what works and what
doesn’t. It gives us a body of evidence to draw
on in re-calibrating our approaches.
The pages that follow are our ‘report card’ on our
performance against our strategic priorities.

“Without the help from this
service, my family and I would
have been out on the street
looking for somewhere to live
with rent in arrears and debt
following close behind….
When there was nothing and
nowhere else, there was you.”

1.2
Healthy and safe,
productive and
participatory and
connected
communities

2.1
A national
voice and
profile

2.2
Research and
evaluation that
shifts policy
and practice

3.1
Major
innovation
projects
implemented

3.2
Organisational
systems
established
that foster
innovation

3.3
Increased
funding
secured for
innovation

4.1
A healthy
culture with
talented
people leading
and delivering
results

4.2
Structures
and systems
in place
that support
growth and
change

2010-2011 Organisational Priorities

Connecting TBS clients with
their community
Evaluating our priority
programs

Having a louder voice and
stronger presence nationally

Implementing the Resilience
Practice Framework

Participating in strategic
research partnerships

Implementing two major innovations
(Apartments for Life & Growing Communities
Together)
Meeting fundraising targets
Building our innovative culture

Developing our workforce and
our leadership capability
Implementing a client and
stakeholder relationship
management system

Client Satisfaction Survey

How much did we do?

How well did we do it?

What difference did we
make?

• 50% increase in annual client numbers over
four years (currently at 35,000)
• 30% increase in the number of services over
four years (around 100 currently)

• 96% of clients satisfied with service received
(client survey 2009)
• 97% of clients would recommend the service to
others (client survey 2009)

• 93% of clients felt that their life was better
because of our support
• 69% of clients felt more a part of their
community as a result of our support
• Improved wellbeing, parenting skills and
improved relationships with children

• 24% increase in number of staff over
last five years (currently at 798)

• 92% of staff like the kind of work they do
• 90% of staff agree that their work gives them a
feeling of personal accomplishment
• 53% of staff agreed that career opportunities
exist for them
• 43% are satisfied with their income

• overall extremely positive results eg. 91%
of staff felt a sense of loyalty and commitment
to us
• turnover reduced from 21.7% to 15.4%
over last five years

• 690 volunteers currently
• 20% increase in last quarter

• 92% satisfied with their overall volunteering
experience (volunteer survey 2008)

• 90% agreed that volunteering had increased
their awareness of community needs
• 69% felt better about themselves because
of volunteering

Volunteers

• 70% increase in our investment in evaluation
• 40% increase in number of our programs being
evaluated (currently at 50%)
• 8 reports of evaluation results

• 83% of staff agree that TBS is committed to
evaluation (2010 staff evaluation survey)
• 60% of staff agree there is a culture of
evaluation at TBS (2010 staff evaluation survey)

• 56% of staff think our evaluation work is
changing the way we provide our services
• 62% of staff think our clients receive a better
service because of our evaluation work

Evaluation

• 6 research reports/snapshots
produced in 2009/10
• 70 media releases in 2009/10,
up 7-fold on 2006/07
• 10 submissions to government inquiries
• 16 meetings with Ministers/Shadow Ministers

• 497 known media mentions in 2009/10,
up 7-fold on 2006/07
• The Benevolent Society nominated as No 2 on
top 10 leading organisations in aged care

Difficult to assess but...
• Apartments for Life concept recognised as
one of the top 10 innovations in aged care
• partner in GoodStart, the largest social
enterprise in Australia

Clients

Staff

Influence
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Measuring our impact
We believe our investment in evaluation sets us
apart from many other non-profit organisations
and reflects the importance we place on impact
as well as effort.

See page 23 for
summary tables
showing our strategic
priorities and our results.

We’re calling for a national
scheme which gives parents
access to 52 weeks paid
parental leave.

Strategic Goal 2: National influence
We have made a significant investment in our advocacy work, but measuring the
effectiveness of influence strategies is notoriously challenging. We know that
more people are engaging with us online via our website and social media
platforms. We also know that our media presence has increased dramatically.
We also published six research reports making recommendations for change by
governments and service providers and a major position paper Investing in
Children’s Development: the importance of relationships.

We want to effect systemic change that will create lasting benefits for society.
Measurement of key activities and outcomes along the way gives us a sense of
how we are progressing.

We are represented on 40 important committees of influence at State or national
level, including Chair of the Association of Child Welfare Agencies in NSW and
PeakCare in Queensland. We have also experienced a significant increase in
media mentions and invitations to take part in high level policy discussions.

Over the past year, we have seen our plans for a greater focus on evaluation
come to fruition. We began this work in 2008 when we introduced an Evaluation
Framework. In 2009 we created a list of priorities and 50% of our services are
now being evaluated, giving us a significant evidence-base for innovation,
improvement and impact.

Over the next 12 months our advocacy work will focus on the harmful effects of
domestic violence on children, the need to find new models of housing care and
support for older people and the importance of early childhood development.

In 2009 we undertook a second staff survey with Macquarie University’s VOICE
Project research team. We also completed our second Client Satisfaction
Survey. The results from both surveys demonstrate that we are tracking well as
an organisation and we are having a positive impact on our clients’ lives, but
there is room for improvement. We also plan to conduct a stakeholder survey to
build an external picture of our impact and effectiveness.

Strategic Goal 1: Results in Communities
Client Satisfaction Survey results: 96% of participants reported that they were
satisfied overall with the services we provided. We believe the lower scores
reflect a tension between our aim to build community connectedness and the
one-to-one nature of many of our government funded programs. To address
this, every operational region has now included specific actions in their Business
Plans to respond to the areas for improvement highlighted.

“This service has helped
me realise life has a purpose.”
Client Satisfaction Survey

Visit the Research and
Policy section of our website
at www.bensoc.org.au for
full details of our research
results and current projects.

Unique Website Visitors

Known Media Mentions
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Strategic Goal 3: Boldness and innovation
Our Client Survey results can
be viewed at www.bensoc.org.au

7

Had a real say
Staff are helpful

8.6

Staff follow through

8.5

Feel respected and listened to

8.8

Recommend to others

8.9

Staff keep me well informed

7.9

Satisfied with the service I get

8.7

Make positive changes

7.3

Life is better

7.3

Links to my community

5.6

Feel more a part of my community

5.9
0

Areas for improvement

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Areas where we are doing well

This year we embarked on a new venture in Strathpine, a suburb of Brisbane,
to allow us to test a new method of service delivery: combining a traditional
medical model with services emphasising building community connections.
Through the Women’s Heath & Mother-Baby Hub we offer health, information,
education, social and wellbeing services.
The Hub is different from a regular general practice because it provides a broad
range of services within a friendly, supportive, accessible and child-friendly
environment. We deliver a unique service to the community and the more the
community supports these facilities, the more we are able to give back via
facilitated playgroups, education classes, drop-in clinics for newborns, financial
literacy and back-to-work classes for women.

7.9

Feel more in charge of my life

We have set ourselves an ambitious target. By 2014/2015, we aim to have
20,000 more donors than at present – a 400 per cent increase. To help achieve
our target, over the last two years we have focused on our donor acquisition
efforts, particularly through direct mail and developing partnerships to support
our innovation work.

9

10

Read about our major innovation projects on page 9.
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Strategic Goal 4: Growth, infrastructure and sustainability
Our 2007 and 2009 staff surveys give us a robust longitudinal picture of how
our staff view the organisation. The overall results in 2009 were again
excellent, and we are proud to have maintained such consistently positive
results. However a number of themes emerged as ‘hot spots’. These mostly
relate to our rapid period of growth, and demonstrate that our IT and business
processes have not kept pace with change.
We’re addressing this by investing in our business and technology
infrastructure, launching a new Intranet, developing an organisation-wide
Customer Relationship Management system and focusing on improving
internal communications.
Our strengths
Organisational
commitment

A focus on external
partnerships &
opportunities

The provision of excellent
learning and development
opportunities

Encouragement of high
performance and a focus
on achieving results

High degree of
job satisfaction

Strong alignment
with our values
and purpose

High quality care and innovative services that
meet the needs of clients and communities

Areas for improvement
Progression
Remuneration
Recognition

Collaboration

Decision-making
Risk-taking

Communication
Feedback

Our environmental efforts are in their early stages, but we have had some
success. It is now standard to offset greenhouse gas emissions for our major
events. We have introduced videoconferencing, which reduces travel and
connects our staff more effectively and in a more personal way. We have
reduced the number of printed paper publications we produce, and we’re
trialling waterless printing, which offers significant environmental advantages over
traditional methods and saves 40 per cent of waste paper.
During 2010/2011 a project team at our head office in Paddington will be piloting
an environmental sustainability project. Our aim is to reduce the impact of the
four major contributors to greenhouse gas omissions by 10% and develop an
approach that can be replicated across all locations.

‘Apartments for Life’ was
listed in the Sydney Morning
Herald Good Weekend article
‘Retire High’ (19 June 2010)
as one of 50 ways to save
the world.

The Carbon Reduction Institute measured the ‘footprint’ for our 2010 senior
management leadership workshop and 2.37 tonnes CO2e greenhouse gas was
offset, ensuring a carbon neutral result.

As our organisation continues to grow in size
and complexity, we will maintain a robust
corporate governance and risk management
platform across all areas.
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Our Patron and Board of Directors
We are committed to conducting our affairs and delivering our services
with the highest standards of personal and corporate integrity.

Board Committees

There has been a consistent message for several years now that
donors and supporters of not-for-profit organisations expect high
levels of accountability and transparency about their results. We take
this responsibility seriously.

Robert Warren (Chair)
Justin Ryan
Sam Weiss (ex-officio)

We are proud that our 2009 Annual Report achieved a top 5 placing in
the annual National Transparency Awards, which recognise all aspects
of reporting, not just financial results, and special mention was made
of our overall improvements over the past three years.

Our Patron
Her Excellency Professor
Marie Bashir
AC, CVO
Governor of New South Wales

Audit & Finance Committee

Tanya Gilerman

Gary Moore

BEc, CA, CPA (director since 15 March 2005)

BA, BSocW, MMgt
(director since 20 November 2006)

Tanya is a partner and COO of KPMG Sydney’s
Audit Division. She is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and the
Australian Institute of Company Directors. She is a
graduate of the 2006 Sydney Leadership Program.

Gary is Director of Community Services at
Marrickville Council, located in the inner west of
Sydney. From 1995 to 2006, he was the Director
(CEO) of the Council of Social Service of NSW
(NCOSS), the State’s peak non-government
human services body. Gary is currently
Chairperson of Healthy Kids – the NSW School
Canteens Association.

President: Sam Weiss

Honorary Treasurer: Robert Warren

Margaret Hetherton

Justin Ryan

AB Harvard University, MS Columbia Business School,
FAICDSS (director since 14 July 2005)

BEc, CA, A Fin, GAICD (director since 19 July 2010)

MA, Dip Soc Wk, Dip Soc Res
(director since 9 October 1998)

BA, BSocW, MMgt (director since 15 August 2008)

Sam is Chairman of Altium Ltd, Deputy Chairman
of GLG Corp Limited and a Non-Executive Director
of OrotonGroup Ltd, Breville Limited, IPGA Limited
and the Sydney Festival. He is the incoming
Chairman of Open Universities Australia. Sam is a
graduate of the 2002 Sydney Leadership Program.

Rob is a partner in KPMG Sydney’s Audit practice.
He is a Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia, a Graduate of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors and an
Associate of the Securities Institute of Australia. He
is also chair of the A&F Committee.

Now retired, Margaret was formerly the Chief
Executive of the Mercy Family Centre and has filled
Board and management roles in other aged care
and disability service organisations. She has
published social research in relation to the legal
profession, sociology of religion, adolescent
development and refugee issues.

Vice-President: Robert Fitzgerald

Rebecca Dee-Bradbury

Joan Lind

AM, B Com, LLB (director since 20 November 2006)

B Bus (Marketing), MAICD (director since 15 August 2008)

BA (director since 18 August 2008)

Formerly a commercial solicitor, Robert is currently
a full time Commissioner with the Productivity
Commission, and was formerly NSW Community
and Disability Services Commissioner. He is a past
President of the Australian Council of Social
Services (ACOSS) and founding Chair of the
National Roundtable of Nonprofit Organisations.

Rebecca is the President of Kraft Australia and
New Zealand. Previously Rebecca led the
turnaround of Barbeques Galore as Group CEO.
She has a background in organisational
transformation having held key roles within
McDonald’s/DDB Needham, eVentures (a
Newscorp company), Pepsi Cola Bottlers and
Maxxium. Rebecca is a member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors and is Chair of the
HR Committee.

Joan is a partner at The One Centre, a branded arts
and entertainment strategic and creative agency. She
spent eight years at M&C Saatchi, Sydney working on
campaigns for NSW Government (Metropolitan Water
plan and CityRail) and for corporate clients such as
Qantas, Optus, Audi and British Airways. She also
developed campaigns with The Shepherd Centre,
School for Deaf Children and Kids Helpline via Optus.
In London, she was involved in a corporate mentoring
program for children in underprivileged schools where
English was not their first language.

Justin started his career in 1989 as a lawyer with
Allen Allen & Hemsley in Sydney and then Davis Polk
& Wardwell in New York. He joined Catalyst
Investment Managers in 1997 as a private equity
investor and was CEO and Managing Director of
Alesco Corporation Limited from 2006 to 2010. He
retired as Chairman of the Australian Venture Capital
Association in 2003 and was Chairman of Access
Programs Limited (a not-for-profit Employee Access
Programs Provider) from 2003–2008.

Human Resources Committee
Rebecca Dee-Bradbury (Chair)
Margaret Hetherton
Joan Lind
Sam Weiss (ex-officio)
See Governance statement on page 30 for more
information about our Board Committees
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Governance
statement
30 June 2010
We are social pioneers and innovators.
Our purpose is to create caring and inclusive
communities and a just society.
We value community life that is healthy and safe,
connected, productive and participatory, rich in cultural
and recreational activities, just and fair.
We are committed to conducting our affairs and
services with the highest standards of personal and
corporate integrity. Anything less is unacceptable.
The Benevolent Society (the Society) is a public
benevolent institution operating as a company limited
by guarantee. Its activities are regulated by the
Corporations Act and other State and Commonwealth
Laws as applicable and the Society’s Constitution.
The Society has a Board of directors which is chaired by
the President. No directors receive remuneration, though
expenses incurred on Society business may be reimbursed.
The duties and responsibilities of the Board are as follows:
• to set our strategic direction
•	to ensure that the Society is managed responsibly
and competently
•	to ensure that the Society is responsible and accountable
to all stakeholders
• to ensure the Society’s sound financial performance
•	to ensure the Society complies with the law and a high
level of ethical standards
• to ensure effective management of risks
• to monitor the effectiveness of all services.
This Statement is written to help the Board and all the
Society’s stakeholders understand how Board directors
perform their roles.

The Society’s strategic goals, priorities, and resource
allocations are reviewed, discussed and affirmed by Board
and Management at a joint annual planning session.

2. The Board lays solid foundations
for effective management
Our Board and Management have clearly defined roles.
The President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) ensure
that our directors and Management team understand
their responsibilities.
The Board approves the Society’s strategic objectives
and holds Management accountable to competently
and responsibly achieve them.
Management is responsible for the implemention of the
Strategic Plan, within the risk, financial and other
frameworks set by the Board. In addition, Management is
expected to introduce to the Board outcomes of research
and suggestions for additional initiatives that are aligned
with the Society’s purpose.
To enable Management to fulfil its role appropriately
the Board:

It is the Board’s responsibility to ensure that the Society
maximises opportunities to achieve its purpose.

• appoints the CEO
•	delegates authority to the CEO and reviews the CEO’s
performance annually
•	appoints the Company Secretary and reviews
performance through the President
•	participates in developing and approving the strategic
objectives of the organisation
•	ratifies and monitors implementation of strategic goals
through the review of annual business plans and budgets
•	approves and monitors major initiatives that may affect
the overall financial performance and financial health of
the Society
• regularly monitors financial performance
•	reviews risk management and compliance
systems annually
•	periodically and as required reviews ethical policies,
standards and codes of conduct
•	actively considers the interests of stakeholders in its
decision-making
•	meets regularly with members of the Society’s
Management team.
The day-to-day management of the Society’s activities is
delegated to the CEO. The CEO briefs the President
regularly on emerging and ongoing issues, and updates all
directors on matters of importance, as appropriate,
between Board meetings.

The Board works with Management to prepare a Strategic
Plan. Management reports at least annually against the
objectives set out in that Plan.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
governance matters and supports the Board to help
implement Board decisions.

1. Directors’ personal engagement
with the Society
We expect our directors to support and promote our
core values.
We have an induction program to help new directors
understand the Society’s strategic and operational position,
our responsibilities to our various stakeholders and the
wider community context in which we operate. Directors
are expected to visit or attend a range of Society facilities,
services and functions each year and to attend
presentations by practitioners and social policy experts.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to Board
Committees within clearly defined limits.

3. The Board adds value
and is structured accordingly
The Society believes that its interests will be best served if
the Board incorporates an appropriate range of skills and
experience to govern the Society’s affairs properly and that
collectively the Board will have the expertise to address all
issues and challenges the Society is likely to face.

Board and specific delegated authority on some matters.
Other committees are created on an ad hoc basis, usually
with limited duration to address a specific matter or
initiative. For a number of years the Board has operated a
National Influence Working Group, in addition to the formal
standing Committees.

4. We respect the rights and interests
of our stakeholders

At least one third of directors must retire each year, by
rotation. They may offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM). Directors appointed by the
Board during the course of the year must submit
themselves for election by the Members at the next AGM.

We deal with our stakeholders in accordance with
our values. Stakeholders include clients and former clients;
recipients of our services; program funders, donors and
grantors; Members; staff and volunteers; graduates of the
Society’s social leadership programs; individuals who have
a demonstrated interest in the Society’s work; academics
and public thinkers who have an interest in the fields in
which the Society works; and the wider communities in
which we operate, including individuals, other agencies and
government entities. Particular attention is paid to the
relationship between the Society and the various
government bodies that fund a large number of the
Society’s programs and to whom we are required to report
to demonstrate our effectiveness.

Office Bearers (President, Vice-Presidents and
Treasurer) cannot serve more than five consecutive
years in one position.

We encourage feedback from our stakeholders, and our
decision-making framework ensures their needs are
considered when we develop services and procedures.

Directors are expected to prepare for, and participate in,
Board and Committee meetings. Directors also have ready
access to the CEO and members of the Management team
at all times to enquire about matters and provide advice
and guidance.
The Constitution stipulates that the number of directors of
the Society will be not less than five and not more than 20.

Appointment of directors
We select directors who identify with and support our
core values. When seeking an additional director for
appointment the Board follows a policy of attracting the
best talent that may be available. Nominations may be
sought from external consultants as well as from Board
members and staff.
A Board Committee, headed by the President, is authorised
to consider potential appointees, conduct interviews and
make recommendations to the full Board. The Committee
will typically comprise the President, Vice-President and
one or two other directors.
Board review
The Board invites an external consultant to conduct a
Board review from time to time. The purpose of the review
is to identify issues relating to the skills, behaviours,
relationships or practices that might be inhibiting the Board
from being fully effective. The Board believes that
constructive feedback from an external expert helps the
Board to address the dynamic nature of the services and
environment within which the Society operates.

5. We desire a special relationship
with our Members
The Board is accountable to the Members for the conduct
of the Society’s affairs. In particular the Board expects
Members to hold it accountable for the long-term
management of the Society’s financial resources.
The Society seeks to have its various stakeholders
represented in its membership. The Society hopes that in
addition to fulfilling their responsibilities under the
Corporations Law and its Constitution, Members will
engage with the Society to support the direction and
purpose of the Society’s work and participate in some
measure in the Society’s activities.
Members receive regular communications about the
Society’s activities and progress.

6. We require integrity in financial management
and reporting
Appropriate management of the Society’s financial affairs is
fundamental to the financial health of the Society and its
ability to satisfy its expanding service obligations.

A director’s decision to continue on the Board is the result
of self-assessment and discussion with the President
ahead of the AGM at which re-election is an option.

The Audit and Finance Committee is a standing Committee
of the Board. Its objectives are to assist the Board to
discharge its responsibilities in respect of the Society’s:

The Board has two standing Committees: Audit and
Finance, and Human Resources, with charters set by the

• financial management
• internal control systems
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Our Senior Management Team

• risk management system
• protection of its assets
• financial reporting
• application of accounting policies
• business policies and practices
•	compliance with applicable laws, regulations, standards
and practice guidelines.
In doing this it is intimately involved in the annual budgeting
process, investment policies, insurance policy management
and engagement with external auditors.
The Audit and Finance Committee comprises at least three
directors. The CEO, Chief Financial Officer, and from time to
time other executives, are invited to attend meetings. Once
a year the Committee interviews the external auditors,
without Management being present.
The Treasurer, who chairs the Committee meetings,
reports to the full Board at the next Board meeting and
submits recommendations to the Board as determined
by the Committee.
We receive a written report from the CEO and CFO that our
financial reports present a true and fair view of all aspects
of the Society’s financial performance and position.

7. We manage risk and monitor compliance
We have a risk management plan that is reviewed at least
six-monthly by the Audit and Finance Committee.
Assessment, control and treatment of risks are built into our
annual cycle of risk review and operating plans.
Compliance is managed in the following ways.
•	The Human Resources (HR) Committee reviews all
matters to do with personnel, including Occupational
Health and Safety (OHS) and other statutory requirements
for the safety and wellbeing of our staff and volunteers.
•	The Audit and Finance Committee reviews compliance
with fundraising legislation, Australian Securities and
Investment Commission (ASIC) requirements and our
taxation status.
•	The Board reviews compliance with the various
compliance provisions and accreditation regimes for our
clients including childcare and aged care.
•	All research projects require approval by a staff research
approval committee, and are subjected to scrutiny by a
research ethics committee.
•	All breaches of policies other than HR policies are
required to be reported to the Audit and Finance
Committee.
Legal risk is monitored, reviewed and managed by the
Society’s General Counsel.

8. We value our people
The people who work at The Society demonstrate a high

level of concern for the disadvantaged, a strong social
conscience and a passionate loyalty to our clients and our
organisation. It is important that we respect their contribution
to society at large and to our organisation. Accordingly, our
HR practices must be of the highest quality.
The HR Committee is a standing Committee of the Board
and is responsible for:
•	reviewing the overall HR strategy and monitoring its
implementation
•	monitoring the implementation of strategic HR policies
and plans relating to remuneration and benefits, talent
management, culture and employee engagement,
performance management and OHS
•	recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration and other terms and conditions for the CEO
and Management team members
•	recommendations to the Board of budget parameters for
the annual remuneration review
•	reviewing the selection and remuneration of direct reports
to the CEO
•	monitoring development and succession plans of the
Management team and other ‘business critical’ roles
•	monitoring the culture and engagement levels of the
organisation
•	reviewing annual salary and award levels in the
community and government sectors.
The Committee comprises at least three directors. The
CEO and General Manager Human Resources are invited
to attend meetings.
The Chairman of the Committee reports to the full Board at
the next meeting and submits recommendations to the
Board as determined by the Committee.
The CEO’s performance and remuneration are reviewed by
the full Board.

Richard Spencer

Wendy Miller

Keith Bryant

LL.B, MProfEthics: Chief Executive Officer
(appointed 2004)

B Ec, CA: Chief Financial Officer (appointed 2003)

LL.B, MBA: General Manager Social Initiatives
(joined 2001, appointed to current role 2007)

Richard has spent many years working at the
CEO level in the non profit sector. Previous roles
have included CEO of The Spastic Centre and
CEO of AFS Intercultural Programs in New York.
He also served as Executive Director of UNICEF
Australia in the late 1980s. Prior to that, he
worked as a corporate lawyer for Clayton Utz
and held senior management positions with Rio
Tinto and Pioneer International.

Wendy has 29 years experience at Chief Financial
Officer level in the commercial and not-for-profit
sectors. Before joining us, she was CFO with the
Dymocks Group of Companies (1995 to 2002) and
the Children’s Hospital, Camperdown (1991 to
1994). Wendy also held the role of Finance Director,
Australasia for advertising agency Saatchi and
Saatchi, where she managed their mergers and
acquisitions during a rapid growth phase. She began
her career in 1975 with Coopers and Lybrand.

Annette Michaux

Maree Walk

Liz Yeo

BA (Hons), B Soc Wk (Hons) M Ed: General Manager
Social Policy and Research (joined 2001, appointed to
current role 2004)

B Soc Wk: General Manager Operations
(appointed 2001)

BSoc Wk, M Ed (Adult): General Manager Human
Resources (appointed 2008)

Maree has more than 25 years experience in the
community services area and has a background in
social work and the performing arts. She initially
joined us to oversee our child and family work, but
now manages all of our operations. She is the Chair
of NSW Association of Child Welfare Agencies, the
peak body of child and family non-government
agencies, and is on the board of the national body
CAFWA (Child and Family Welfare Agencies).

Liz has more than 20 years experience in social
work, volunteer management, adult education and
training and in human resources. She was previously
HR Manager at The Cancer Council NSW
(2003–2008) and also Learning and Organisational
Development Consultant (1999–2003). She was also
Manager of Volunteer and Training Programs at The
AIDS Council of NSW. Liz is a member of the
Australian Human Resources Institute and the
Australian Institute of Management.

Tracey Young

Robbie Macpherson

Elaine Leong

BA (Communications) (Hons): Head of Communications
(joined 2008, appointed to current role 2009)

MA: Head of Social Leadership Australia
(appointed 2000)

Tracey has more than 15 years experience in a
range of communications, media liaison and
management roles in local and state government,
including the NSW Department of Community
Services and the NSW Commission for Children
and Young People. She is also a Director on the
Board of the Lady Gowrie Child Centre.

Robbie began his career in the corporate sector,
moving to the non-profit sector in 1995 to manage
youth mentoring programs. Social Leadership
Australia programs and designs and delivers
innovative leadership development programs in the
government, corporate, community and youth
sectors, as well as working as an executive coach.

BA, LLB, BA Comm (Honours), Grad Dip Legal Prac
Company Secretary/General Counsel
(appointed January 2010)

A social worker and adult educator by training,
Annette was previously Executive Officer of the
NSW Child Protection Council and in the senior
policy team at the NSW Commission for Children
and Young People. She is on the Board of the
Australasian Evaluation Society, and the Lady
Gowrie Child Centre and is a member of Australian
Research Alliance for Children and Youth (ARACY),
Future Generations–Network Advisory Committee.

Keith initially joined us in the role of Chief
Operating Officer, but now oversees our social
innovation projects and fundraising activities.
Keith has more than 18 years experience in the
investment banking industry, working in
managerial roles in London, Milan,
Johannesburg, South East Asia and Australia.
He is a 2001 Sydney Leadership graduate.

We have a positive and engaged volunteering culture and
offer a range of opportunities for individuals and
organisations to contribute to our community work. We value
and publicly recognise the contribution of our volunteers in
various forums and formats throughout the year.
Notwithstanding the need to have policies, protocols
and procedures in place to fulfil its obligations properly,
the Board is aware that the Society will perform to its
potential only if its people, in whatever capacity they
operate, exemplify a culture of adherence to the
Society’s values. It is not possible to legislate for ‘good
behaviour’. Nor is it possible to ensure by policy or
direction that The Benevolent Society’s people
constantly strive to ‘do the right thing’ or have ‘duty of
care’ as their guiding light. Yet this is the essence of
what the Society is about. Without recognition of this,
the Governance Statement would be incomplete.

Elaine is a commercial solicitor with particular
expertise in the telecommunications and
communications, marketing and advertising sectors.
Prior to joining The Benevolent Society she
established and led the first in-house pro bono legal
team approved under the National Pro Bono PI
Insurance Scheme in Australia and continues to
maintain her own pro bono legal practice under
this scheme.

34

Governance

Geoff Aigner MSD, MBA
Senior Manager Development,
Social Leadership Australia
(appointed 2007)

Andrew Anderson LLB, MSc
Senior Manager, Research and Evaluation
(appointed 2007)

Greg Antcliff BA, Dip.Ed, M.Litt (Psych), M Ed
Senior Manager Practice and Research
(joined 2003, appointed to current role 2009)

Jenni Hutchins BA (Welfare Studies), Grad Dip
(Child and Family), MAPS, JP

Senior Manager Metro South West
and Western Sydney
(joined 2001, appointed to current role 2007)

Karen Lee BApplSc, MHA
Senior Manager, Research to Practice Ageing
and Community Care
(appointed 2010)

Our Senior Managers and
their biographical details can
be found in the ‘About Us’
pages on our website at
www.bensoc.org.au
See our website at www.bensoc.org.au for a full
Organisational Chart for The Benevolent Society

Linda Livingstone BSW, MA International
Development

Margot Beach Grad Dip (Community and

Social Science)

Senior Manager Regional and Rural NSW
(appointed 2007)

Senior Manager Metro Central NSW
(joined 2007, appointed to current role in 2009)

Adrienne O’Brien

Kathleen Clark BA (Social Studies) CQSW, MHO

Senior Manager Fundraising
(appointed 2008)

Senior Manager, Fostering Young Lives
(appointed 2008)

Liz Skelton BA (Hons)

June Crowley BSc MSc
Chief Information Officer
(appointed 2010)

Senior Manager, Programs,
Social Leadership Australia
(appointed 2006)

Barbara Squires B Soc Stud (Hons)

Sarah Fogg BSc (Hons), MA Public and Social
Administration

General Manager Ageing
(appointed 1996)

Senior Manager, Policy
(appointed 2006)

Michael Tizard BA, BSW,
Post Grad Cert Public Admin

Steve Hawkins B.Ec, MBA, ACA

Senior Manager Queensland
(joined 2005, appointed to current role 2007)

Executive Social Initiatives
(appointed 2010)

Regulatory environment
As a registered non-profit organisation and a
company limited by guarantee The Benevolent
Society operates within the legal framework set
by the legislation below. As part of our service
delivery we also comply with various servicespecific legislation and regulations ranging from
childcare to ageing.
We are registered under the Australian Securities
and Investment Commission: Corporations Act
2001 as a Public Australian Company, Limited
by Guarantee.

We are registered under the Australian Taxation
Office: Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 as a
Public Benevolent Institution and endorsed for
exemption from income tax.

We are endorsed under the Australian Taxation
Office: Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 as a
public benevolent institution accepted for
Deductible Gift Recipient status.

We are authorised under the Charitable
Fundraising Act 1991 to fundraise in NSW. We
are registered as a charity under the provisions of
the Queensland Government Collections Act
1966 to fundraise in Queensland.

We are endorsed under the Australian Taxation
Office: Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986
for FBT exemption.

We are endorsed under the Australian Taxation
Office: A new Tax System (Goods and Services)
Act 1999 for GST concessions.
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Ensuring our organisation remains financially
sustainable is vital and we take a rigorous
approach to our annual financial management.
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Your directors present their report on The Benevolent Society
(“the Society”) for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Sam Weiss
Robert Fitzgerald
Tanya Gilerman
Rebecca Dee-Bradbury
Margaret Hetherton
Joan Lind
Gary Moore

This financial report covers The Benevolent Society (‘the Society’). The financial report is
presented in the Australian currency.
The Society is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.
Its registered place of business is:
The Benevolent Society
Level 1, 188 Oxford Street
Paddington NSW 2021
A description of the nature of the Society’s operations and its principal activities is
included in the review of operations and activities in the Directors’ report.
The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 20 September 2010. The
directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial report.
Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely and
complete. All press releases, financial reports and other information are available on our
website: www.bensoc.org.au.

Justin Ryan
Denise Lynch was a director from the beginning of the financial year
until her retirement on 18 November 2009.
Julie Rosenberg was a director from the beginning of the financial
year until her resignation on 18 August 2009.
Simone Schwarz was a director from the beginning of the financial
year until her retirement on 18 November 2009.
Robert Warren was appointed director on 19 July 2010.

Principal activities
Our purpose is to create caring and inclusive communities. We
support people in over 50 communities in Victoria, New South Wales
and Queensland. The largest area of our work is with children and
families. This work includes foster care, child protection, early
intervention and community capacity building. Other services we
provide include mental health, community aged care, carer respite,
domestic violence, adoption, community leadership and services for
the elderly. We work with people from all backgrounds, including
Indigenous Australians and people from culturally and linguistically
diverse communities.
During the year significant resourcing was given to the successful bid
by the GoodStart Childcare Limited (GoodStart) syndicate for 678
ABC Learning Centres. The Society was one of four not-for-profit
founding members of GoodStart. GoodStart commenced operation
on 31 May 2010 as a non-profit organisation, ensuring all surplus
funds are reinvested to improve early childhood learning.
We do this with the support of our staff and volunteers. The Society
employs 800 staff, the equivalent of 579 full time staff throughout New
South Wales and Queensland. Approximately 900 volunteers are
working across our services and programs as well as in individual
roles with our support services.

How we spent our funds: 2010
$ Million

All directors are members of the Society.

0

5

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Darling Park Tower 2
201 Sussex Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Bankers
Commonwealth Bank
363 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

15

20

Ageing

29.1%

Community
Development

Social Leadership
Australia

Mental Health

25

34.9%

Child & Family

19.1%

10.2%

Other

Auditor

10

3.5%

3.2%

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the
Society during the year apart from the Society’s interest in GoodStart.
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Directors Report
30 June 2010
(continued)

Review of operations and results

Revenue

Assets

Significant changes in the state of affairs

The Society experienced another year of significant growth. All areas
of the Society’s work grew due to increased government and private
funding. During the year significant capital was spent on new and
improved facilities for our community workers and information
technology and business systems.

Revenue from continuing operations grew by 19% in 2010. Revenue
from total operations grew by 3% to $61,667,000 due to the revenue
impact of discontinuing residential facilities in 2009. Revenue growth
resulted from an increase in government funding of 15% primarily in
the children’s areas of Fostering Young Lives for children placed in
care, funding for Early Years Centres in Queensland, funding for the
Personal Helpers and Mentors program for people suffering from
mental illness and community aged care. Fundraising income
increased 34% and the GoodStart transaction fee of $2,500,000
which was converted to a subordinated note also increased revenue.

Total assets increased by 14% to $111,643,000. The increase of
$13,331,000 was primarily due to the GoodStart subordinated notes
of $5,000,000 to finance the purchase of GoodStart, increase in
property assets $3,399,000 and increase in other financial assets
referred to as managed funds of $4,419,000. Of the increase in
managed funds, $2,844,000 resulted from unrealised gains in the
market value. The balance was due to the reinvestment of
distributions to maintain real growth.

There was no significant change in the state of affairs of the Society
during the financial year, apart from the Society’s interest in
GoodStart.

During the year substantial time was invested in the “year one”
activities detailed in the Society’s three year strategic plan 2009-2012.

Net surplus
The net surplus for the year ended 30 June 2010 was $3,656,000
(2009 deficit: $2,166,000). The net surplus was mainly as a result of
the transaction fee from GoodStart which was converted to a
subordinated note of $2,500,000 and increased returns from the
managed fund investments of $741,000.

Liabilities

70

Liabilities increased by 40% to $24,521,000. The increase of
$6,741,000 was primarily a result of increased government and trust
and foundation contracted funding of $5,117,000 received in
advance.

60

Society’s funds

Revenue continues to grow

Total Society’s funds increased by 8% to $87,122,000. The increase
of $6,500,000 was due to the increase in the available for sale
financial assets reserve of $2,844,000 due to the increase in the
market value of the managed fund investments, and the net surplus
for the year of $3,656,000.
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Expenses
Expenses from continuing operations grew by 8% in 2010. Total
expenses showed a decrease over 2010 of 7% to $58,011,000.
The decrease is primarily due to no impairment of managed fund
investments in 2010 (2009: $4,485,000) resulting from the
improvements in the global economy and discontinuing residential
facilities.
Continuing operations expenses increased in most areas in line with
the increased funding. The main increases occurred in salaries and
wages 19%, administration by 30% and travel by 28%.

Expenses 2010

Community partners

4%
2%

Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Client expenditure
Client brokerage
Travel and transport
Administration & fundraising
Salaries and wages

6%
1%
67%

9%
3%
8%

Cash reserves increased by $1,817,000 this year. Operating activities
generated a cash surplus of $6,338,000 primarily due to the timing of
government funding. Our investment activities generated a cash
deficit of $4,476,000 resulting from capital expenditure of $4,524,000
including the fit-out of new offices, and $2,500,000 GoodStart
subordinated note, offset by $2,494,000 sale proceeds for the bed
licences of a closed residential facility.

Matters subsequent to the end
of the financial year
There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since
the end of the financial year that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect, the operations of the Society, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the Society in future financial
years.

Likely developments and expected
results of operations
Likely developments in the operations of the Society relate to the
decision to exit the remaining aged care facility. Additional information
is included in this annual financial report under note 9 Discontinued
Operations.
In the opinion of the directors there are no further likely changes in
operations of the Society which will adversely affect the results of the
Society.

Dividends
The Society is a company limited by guarantee. It is prohibited by its
Constitution from paying dividends to members.

Environmental regulation
The Society is not subject to any significant environmental regulation.
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Directors’ Report
30 June 2010
(continued)

Information on directors

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditors (PricewaterhouseCoopers) for audit and non-audit services provided during the year are
set out below.

The persons listed below were directors of the Society during the financial year and up to the date of this report.

The Board of directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received from the Audit and Finance Committee, is
satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the auditors, as set out below, did not
compromise the auditor’s independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

Meetings of directors
The numbers of meetings of the Society’s board of directors and of each board committee held during the year ended 30 June 2010, and the
numbers of meetings attended by each director were:
Board of directors

Audit & finance committee

Human resources committee

Number eligible
to attend

Number
attended

Number eligible
to attend

Number
attended

Number eligible
to attend

Number
attended

Rebecca Dee-Bradbury

8

4

-

-

4

4

Robert Fitzgerald

8

6

-

-

-

-

Tanya Gilerman

8

7

4

4

-

-

Margaret Hetherton

8

8

4

4

4

4

Joan Lind

8

7

-

-

1

1

Denise Lynch

4

4

-

-

-

-

Gary Moore

8

7

-

-

-

-

Julie Rosenberg

2

2

-

-

1

1

Justin Ryan

8

8

4

4

-

-

Simone Schwarz

4

3

-

-

-

-

Sam Weiss

8

8

4

4

4

4

Director

• All non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit and Finance Committee to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and objectivity of
the auditors;
• None of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor’s independence as set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants.
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of the Society, its related practices and non-related
audit firms:

2010

2009

$

$

Audit of financial reports and other audit work under the Corporations Act 2001

59,500

59,500

Total remuneration for audit services

59,500

59,500

Review of government grant financial reports

17,000

17,000

Total remuneration for other assurance services

17,000

17,000

Total remuneration for assurance services

76,500

76,500

Assurance services
1. Audit services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:

Retirement, election and continuation in office of directors

2. Other assurance services

Both Denise Lynch and Simone Schwarz retired as directors of the Board.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:

Remuneration of directors
Directors of the Society are not remunerated.

Loans to directors and executives

Advisory services

There are no loans to the directors or executives of the Society.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:

Insurance of officers
During the financial year the Society paid premiums of $23,250 (2009: $23,250) to insure the directors and secretaries of the Society, and all
executive officers of the Society against a liability incurred as such a director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the
Corporations Act 2001.
The Society is insured for any loss for which a director or officer becomes legally obligated to pay resulting from a wrongful act and any amount
for which the Society indemnifies any director or officer in respect of any claims made against the director or officer arising from a wrongful act.
The Society has not otherwise, during or since the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer of the Society against a liability
incurred as such an officer.

Proceedings on behalf of the Society
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the Society, or
to intervene in any proceedings to which the Society is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Society for all or part of
those proceedings.
No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Society with leave of the Court under section 237 of the Corporations
Act 2001.

Accounting advice in relation to GoodStart
Total remuneration for advisory services

5,500
10,000

5,500

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 42.

Rounding of amounts
The Society is a company of the kind referred to in Class Order 98/100 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the directors’ report. Amounts in the directors’ report have been rounded off in accordance with that
Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars and, in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

Non-audit services
The Society may decide to employ the auditors on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the auditor’s expertise and
experience with the Society are important.

10,000

Taxation services

S. Weiss
Director
Sydney
22 September 2010
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Endowment:
investments
30 June 2010

The Endowment
The Society’s investment portfolio is vitally important to our future
success. The value of the investment portfolio stands at $81,715,000
at 30 June 2010. Returns from the portfolio contribute to many
strategically significant endeavours that the Society undertakes
including playing a critical role in funding the early stages of many of
our major innovations.

Investment assets
100

Given its importance to our strategic plans, the Society considers the
management and oversight of its investment portfolio a critical task.
To further enhance this an Endowment Investment Committee
commenced advising the Board from October 2009. The objectives
of the Endowment Investment Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board about investment strategy, portfolio
construction, fund manager selection and the appropriate level of
distributions each year.

80

60
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The committee

20

0

The individuals appointed to this Committee by the Board are as
follows:
2003

2004

2005

Short-term
Medium-term

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Long-term
Direct property

The portfolio consists of both direct property investments and financial
investments managed externally under various investment horizons.
This Endowment has been built up over many decades and has
proved critical in allowing the Society to develop social innovations
that are beyond the scope of entities without the ability to provide
seed funding. The objective is to maintain the real value of the
Endowment through time by distributing, on average, returns above
the rate of inflation. As the Endowment grows in real terms through
donations and new capital contributions, this will allow increased
funding of social ventures.

7-year average return
8%
7%

Chair: Bill Webster F Fin, MAICD (Appointed March 2009)
Bill was a member of The Benevolent Society Board from 2002–2008
and President from 2003–2008. He serves as a non-executive
Director of several “MLC” branded companies in the national group of
companies. He has significant general management experience, most
recently as an Executive Director of Lend Lease Corporation from
1987–1999. He was a Director of the MS Society of NSW from
2000–04.

C. John Bowers M Com Newcastle, A.M. Harvard University, CFA, FAICD
John has held senior positions with major investment companies
including Global Head of Fixed Income for Barclays Global Investors
(2001–2003), CEO of Barclays Global Investors Australia (1997–2000)
and MD of Frank Russell Australia (1989–1995). Prior to this John was
an academic with the finance faculty at the AGSM, where he
designed and taught MBA and doctoral core courses in finance, as
well as executive programs.

Paul Heath B Com, ASIA

6%

Paul joined the Perth Office of JBWere in 1994 and is currently Chief
Executive Officer of JBWere. Paul serves on the Beyond Empathy
Board and MLC & NAB Wealth Board.

5%
4%
real returns

3%

inflation

2%
1%
0%

Distributions from the Endowment have contributed significantly to the
Society’s innovation agenda. We note here the role of that funding in
the early stage development of the Society’s various social leadership
programs including Sydney Leadership, the launching of Social
Ventures Australia, and the Partnerships in Early Childhood project.
Currently the Endowment is contributing to the research and planning
for two innovative projects – our Apartments for Life project that we
are developing at Bondi and our Growing Communities Together
project that we are piloting at Bankstown. The endowment also funds
our growing research and advocacy work.

Direct
property

Long-term

Medium-term

7 years average rate of inflation

Short-term

Justin Wood PhD Fin, B Com (Hons), CA, CFA
Justin studied and then was a faculty member of the AGSM at the
University of New South Wales (1982–97), was CEO of Barclays
Global Investors (BGI) Australia from 2001–2007 and was a Board
member of the Investment and Financial Services Association (IFSA).
He currently writes and comments on superannuation and
investment issues.
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Statement of
comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2010

The current objectives of our investment portfolio
are as follows:
The short and medium term portfolio are designed to preserve
capital and generate reliable income for various strategic initiatives
that the Society undertakes. The short term portfolio is held in cash
and bank bills and the medium term portfolio is structured to deliver a
reliable but relatively high income stream.
The long-term portfolio is designed to achieve higher long-term
capital returns in order to protect the portfolio’s long-term real value.
The distributions from the long-term portfolio are reinvested, to
maintain or increase the real value of the Endowment.
The Society holds a direct property portfolio (not purpose built and
readily marketable) comprising inner city and regional commercial and
special purpose property. These properties are either rented to
external tenants or used by the Society to deliver community
programs. These properties are carried at cost and return the portfolio
over 6.65% in annual income.

Total income generated
8

15%

Revenue from continuing operations

10%

5
($m) 4

3
2
1
2004

2005

Short-term
Medium-term

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Long-term
Direct property

2010 strategy and management
Like most organisations the capital value of our growth oriented
investments was impacted by the Global Financial Crisis during
2008 and 2009. During the crisis the Society managed its cash flow
to ensure that no investments were required to be sold at distressed
prices. This has meant that the portfolio values improved with the
market recovery which has occurred since February 2009. During
2009–2010 fund distributions of $1,460,000 were used to fund
strategic initiatives and $1,200,000 were reinvested to provide
real growth.

2009

$’000

$’000

5(b)

60,205

45,556

Restricted grants received in advance

5(c)

-

4,880

Total revenue

5(c)

60,205

50,436

(53,681)

(44,297)

(2,401)

(1,602)

(629)

(1,097)

-

(4,485)

(20)

(990)

(56,731)

(52,471)

3,474

(2,035)

-

-

3,474

(2,035)

182

(131)

3,656

(2,166)

2,844

(2,042)

-

-

6,500

(4,208)

Community program expenses
0%

Fundraising and communications expenses
Social initiatives

-5%

Impairment of other financial assets
Total expenses

-15%

11(d)

Infrastructure and investment expenses

-10%
2004

2005

Short-term
Medium-term

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Long-term
Direct property

The Board and Endowment Investment Committee are committed to
build on the success of the Endowment as a sustained funder for
early stage social innovation. Management has initiated a strategy to
significantly grow the capital base of the Endowment through the
addition of private philanthropic funding. The real returns from those
new funds would then provide greater financial resourcing to the
Society’s social innovation agenda on a scale and allow investment in
such ventures for a duration considerably larger than the current
Endowment can achieve. For donors this offering is attractive as it
provides a long-term, highly manageable funding arrangement with an
organisation with a very long and deep track record of social
innovation.

6

2010
Notes

5%

Future plans for the Endowment

7

0

Total
20% returns

A strategic review of the Endowment is being conducted. It is
possible that, as a result, the structure of the portfolio will be changed
from that described above so as to increase the probability of
achieving the Endowment’s objectives.

6(a)

Surplus/(deficit) before income tax
Income tax expense

1(d)

Surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations
Surplus/(deficit) from discontinuing operations

9

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Available for sale financial assets
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance
sheet

Statement of changes
in Society funds

As at 30 June 2010

30 June 2010

Notes

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

7

13,529

11,712

Trade and other receivables

8

2,332

1,679

15,861

13,391

2,984

4,941

18,845

18,332

Assets of discontinuing operations

9(c)

Total current assets
Non current assets
10

5,000

-

Other financial assets

11

49,506

45,087

Property, plant and equipment

12

38,292

34,893

92,798

79,980

111,643

98,312

14,380

7,249

562

789

14,942

8,038

Total non current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

9(c)

Total current liabilities

8,681

8,844

23,623

16,882

Non current liabilities
Provisions

14

898

808

898

808

Total liabilities

24,521

17,690

Net assets

87,122

80,622

Total non current liabilities

SOCIETY’S FUNDS
Available for sale financial assets reserve

15(a)

802

(2,042)

Restricted grants reserve

15(b)

2,345

6,385

Retained surplus

15(c)

83,975

76,279

87,122

80,622

Total Society’s funds
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Retained
surpluses

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

5,560

0

79,270

84,830

825

(2,042)

(2,991)

(4,208)

6,385

(2,042)

76,279

80,622

(4,040)

2,844

7,696

6,500

2,345

802

83,975

87,122

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 30 June 2009
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 30 June 2010

Cash flow
statement
30 June 2010

13

Resident contributions
Liabilities directly associated with discontinuing operations

Assets
available for sale

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Receivables

Trade and other payables

Restricted
grants reserve
Balance as at 1 July 2008

Current assets

47

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

Receipts from government funding and clients (inclusive of goods and
services tax)

60,491

54,718

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)

(55,885)

(54,242)

4,606

476

1,732

2,232

6,338

2,708

GoodStart Subordinated notes

(2,500)

-

Payments for property, plant and equipment

(4,524)

(1,767)

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Managed fund distributions, franking credits and interest received
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

22

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

2,548

6,144

(4,476)

4,377

Proceeds from resident contributions

1,479

5,974

Repayment of resident contributions

(1,524)

(7,205)

(45)

(1,231)

1,817

5,854

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash (outflow) from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

7

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

11,712

5,858

13,529

11,712
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Notes to the
financial statements
30 June 2010
(continued)

30 June 2010

Contents of the notes to the financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

48

2 Financial risk management

51

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

54

4 Segment information

55

5 Revenue

56

6 Expenses

57

7 Current assets – Cash and cash equivalents

58

8 Current assets – Trade and other receivables

58

9 Discontinuing operations

59

10 Non current assets – Receivables

60

11 Non current assets – Other financial assets

61

12 Non current assets – Property, plant and equipment

62

13 Current liabilities – Trade and other payables

63

(c) Revenue recognition

14 Non current liabilities – Provisions

64

15 Reserves and retained surplus

64

16 Key management personnel disclosures

65

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade
allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

17 Remuneration of auditors

66

18 Contingencies

66

19 Commitments

66

20 Related party transactions

67

(i) Sale of goods and disposal of assets

21 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

67

22 Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) to net cash inflow from operating activities

68

23 Additional information furnished under the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the Regulations

68

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets is
recognised when the Society has passed control of the goods or
other assets to the buyer.

24 Going concern

69

(b) Segment reporting
The principal activity of the Society is the provision of community
services.

(i) Adoption of accounting policy for segment reporting
Segment reporting does not apply to general purpose accounts of
not-for-profit entities. However on the 10 February 2005,
amendments to the Aged Care Act 1997 require the treatment of
residential aged care as a reportable segment within the meaning of
AASB 8 Operating Segments. The Society has adopted segment
reporting on the Residential Aged Care segment to conform with the
Aged Care Act 1997 from 1 July 2004 (refer note 4).

Revenue is recognised when the Society has control of the
contribution. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities
as follows:

(ii) Interest and investment income
Interest is recognised when received. Investment income is
recognised on an accrual basis.

1 Summary of significant
accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial report are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001.

Compliance with IFRSs
The financial report of the Society also complies with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Early adoption of standards
The Society has not elected to apply early any standards to the
annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2009.

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets.

Critical accounting estimates

(iii) Restricted grants
Restricted grants received in advance from government, major
donors, trusts and foundations are recognised when the Society has
control of the contribution.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Society’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.

(d) Income Tax

Financial statement presentation

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are not transferred to the Society as Lessee are classified
as operating leases (note 19). Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a basis which reflects the
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. The Society has no finance lease obligations.

The Society has applied the revised AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements which became effective on 1 January 2009. The
revised standard requires the separate presentation of a statement of
comprehensive income and a statement of changes in equity. All
non-owner changes in equity must now be presented in the
statement of comprehensive income. As a consequence, the Society
had to change the presentation of its financial statements.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it is also in
conformity with the revised standard.

The Society, as a public benevolent institution, is endorsed for income
tax exemption under subdivision 50-B of the Income Tax Assessment
Act 1997.

(e) Leases

(f) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Society recognises land and buildings using the cost model in
accordance with AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment. Property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Non financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of nine months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(h) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as they
are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of
recognition.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off to bad debts
in expenses. An allowance account (doubtful debts) is used when there
is objective evidence that the Society will not be able to collect all
amounts due, according to the original terms of receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is doubtful. The amount of the impairment
allowance and Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not
discounted as the effect of discounting is immaterial.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income within bad debts expenses. When a trade
receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised
becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against bad debts in the statement of
comprehensive income.

(i) Current assets of discontinuing operations
A discontinuing operation as defined in AASB 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, is a component of the
entity that is being disposed of or classified as held for sale and that
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such
a line of business or area of operations. The Society is actively
seeking interested parties to take over the operation of our remaining
aged care facility. The results of discontinuing and discontinued
operations are presented separately in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as discontinuing
operations if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. They
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A
gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
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Notes to the
financial statements
30 June 2010
(continued)

costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non current asset
(or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.
Current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are
classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.
Current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the
other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities
in the balance sheet.

(j) Investments and other financial assets
Classification
The Society classifies its investments as available for sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its investments at initial recognition.

Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets comprise mainly managed funds. The
Society takes a long-term view with its investment funds and it does
this by recording only income from the portfolios in revenue from
continuing activities in the statement of comprehensive income. They
are included in non current assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and derecognition

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment
losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as a
reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income on managed funds classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through the statement of
comprehensive income.

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave

(r) New accounting standards and interpretations

(k) Property, plant and equipment

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits and
annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting
date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’
services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2010 reporting periods.
The Society’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below.

Land and buildings are shown at deemed cost as at transition to
AIFRS date. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Assets are generally capitalised if greater than $1,000. If government
funding contracts state a different level for capitalisation, then that
level is applied in relation to assets purchased under the specific
government contract.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Society and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings

40 years or the life of the lease

Plant and equipment

3–10 years

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date
– the date on which the Society commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Society has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in the Society’s
funds are included in the statement of comprehensive income as
gains and losses from investment securities.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Subsequent measurement
Available for sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Changes in the fair value of managed fund classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Impairment
The Society assesses at each balance date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of managed funds classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a fund below its
cost is considered as an indicator that the funds are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income – is reclassified from Society funds and

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 1(f)).

(l) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Society prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.

(m) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Society has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
theamount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the cost of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date. The amount of the expenditure relating to provisions
are not discounted as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(n) Employee benefits

(ii) Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service.

(iii) On-costs
Employee benefit on-costs, including superannuation and workers
compensation, are recognised and included in employee benefit
expenses when the employee benefits to which they relate, are
recognised as liabilities.

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Society
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either terminating the employment of current employees according to
a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

(o) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of
associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the
taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of
cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented
as operating cash flow.

(p) Resident contributions
Resident contributions are the amounts hostel and village residents
loan to the Society by deed of loan, which are payable on vacation of
a unit by a resident, less the amount allowed to be retained by the
Society, as determined by the deed of the loan.

(q) Rounding of amounts
The Society is of a kind referred to in Class order 98/100, issued by the

Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the
‘rounding off’ of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial
report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the
nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

(i) A
 ASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2009-11
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 (effective 1 January 2013)
AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets and is likely to affect the Society’s
accounting for its financial assets. The standard is not applicable until
1 January 2013 but is available for early adoption. The Society is yet
to assess its full impact. However, initial indications are that it may
affect the Society’s accounting for its available-for-sale financial
assets, since AASB 9 only permits the recognition of fair value gains
and losses in other comprehensive income if they relate to equity
investments that are not held for trading. Fair value gains and losses
on available-for-sale debt investments, for example, will therefore have
to be recognised directly in profit or loss. In the current reporting
period, the Society recognised $2,844,000 of such gains in other
comprehensive income. As at 30 June 2010 the Society has not yet
decided when to adopt AASB 9.

(ii)	AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian
Accounting Standards and AASB 2010-2
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements
(effective from 1 July 2013)
AASB 1053 and AASB 2010-2 establishes a new differential reporting
framework in Australia. Under the new framework, applicable entities
can substantially reduce their disclosures provided they do not have
public accountability. The new framework becomes mandatory from 1
July 2013, as at 30 June 2010, the Society has not yet decided when
to adopt AASB 1053 and AASB 2010-2.

2 Financial risk management
The Society’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Society’s overall financial risk management program focuses
on financial markets and seeks to control potential adverse effects on
the long-term financial performance of the Society. The Society uses
different investments to minimise certain risk exposures. At call
accounts, bank bills and term deposits are exclusively used for short
term purposes of excess cashflow. Managed Funds are used for
medium and long-term investment purposes where a greater risk
tolerance is accepted.
Risk management is carried out by the CFO under policies approved
by the Board of Directors. The CFO identifies, evaluates and
minimises financial risks in close co operation with the Society’s
Board. The Board approves written policies for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
interest rate risk, credit risk, and investment of excess liquidity.
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2 Financial risk management (continued)

The Society holds the following financial instruments:
2010

Continuing

Discontinuing

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

Financial assets

Fixed interest maturing in:
2010

Average
interest rate

Variable
interest rate

1 year
or less

1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

%

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

-

1,199

Cash and cash equivalents

13,529

-

13,529

Trade and other receivables

2,332

1,050

3,382

Financial assets

Non-current receivables

5,000

-

5,000

Cash

0.99

1,199

-

-

-

49,506

-

49,506

Short term deposits

5.52

330

12,000

-

-

-

12,330

70,367

1,050

71,417

Trade and other receivables

-

-

-

-

-

3,382

3,382

7,064

647

7,711

15.00

-

-

-

5,000

-

5,000

562

8,034

8,596

5,790

-

5,790

13,416

8,681

22,097

Available for sale financial assets
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Resident contributions
Government funding received in advance

2009

Continuing

Discontinuing

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

11,712

-

11,712

Trade and other receivables

1,679

2,932

4,611

-

-

-

45,087

-

45,087

58,478

2,932

61,410

Available for sale financial assets
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Resident contributions
Government funding received in advance

Managed funds

Trade and other payables

1,265

6,469

789

7,579

8,368

-

-

-

5,993

8,844

14,837

The Society operates within Australia and therefore is not exposed to direct foreign exchange risk. The Society is indirectly exposed to
foreign exchange risk due to global equities included in funds managed by MLC Investments and Russell Investment Group.

(ii) Price risk
The Society does not directly invest in equities and therefore is not exposed to direct price risk. The Society is exposed to equity securities
price risk as it invests indirectly in the equity market managed by ANZ Trustees and indirectly via funds managed by MLC Investments and
Russell Investment Group. The Society is not exposed directly to commodity price risk but does have an exposure via its investment in the
equity market.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Society’s main interest rate risk arises from short term investments. During 2010 and 2009, the Society’s financial assets and liabilities
at variable rates were denominated in Australian Dollars.
The Society’s overall exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set out in the
following tables.

-

-

-

-

-

49,506

49,506

12,000

-

5,000

52,888

71,417

-

-

-

-

7,711

7,711

5,790

5,790

-

-

-

-

8,596

8,596

-

-

-

-

22,097

22,097

1,529

12,000

-

5,000

30,791

49,320

Average
interest rate

Variable
interest rate

1 year
or less

1 to
5 years

Over
5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

%

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Net financial assets

Fixed interest maturing in:

Financial assets
Cash

1.77

778

–

–

–

–

778

Short term deposits

3.46

2,934

8,000

–

–

–

10,934

Trade and other receivables

–

–

–

–

–

4,611

4,611

Managed funds

–

–

–

–

–

45,087

45,087

–

3,712

8,000

–

–

49,698

61,410

Trade and other payables

–

–

–

–

–

6,469

6,469

Resident contributions payable

–

–

–

–

–

8,368

8,368

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

1,529

Government funding received in
advance

2009

5,204

-

Financial liabilities

Resident contributions payable

Financial assets

Non-current receivables

Non-current receivables

Financial liabilities

Net financial assets

–

–

–

–

–

14,837

14,837

–

3,712

8,000

–

–

34,861

46,573

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. The Society uses banks and financial institutions with a minimum credit rating of AA. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to current and non current receivables, as the Society has a large number of clients, dispersed throughout New South Wales
and in Queensland, Australia. The majority of clients are required to settle using direct debit or using major credit cards. The funding provided by
government is also spread between Australian federal and state government funding.

(c) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. The Society manages liquidity risk by
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 76% (2009: 73%) of the
Society’s funding is provided in advance by government and surplus funds are generally only invested in instruments that are tradeable
in highly liquid markets.
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4 Segment information

(d) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.
As of 1 July 2009, the Society has adopted the amendment to AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures which requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

(a) Description of segments
Business segments

(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

Management has determined the reportable segments based on the reporting requirements of the Aged Care Act 2007 (refer to note 1(b))

(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly
(derived from prices) (level 2),and

The Society is organised into the following divisions by product and service type:

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Includes aged care residential hostels and nursing homes.

The following tables present the Society’s assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2010. Comparative information
has not been provided as permitted by the transitional provisions of the new rules.

Community services

Residential aged care

Includes mental health programs, children’s services and childcare centres, aged care community services, social leadership, and women’s
health programs.
Other activities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$,000

$,000

$,000

$,000

-

-

-

-

Managed funds

49,506

-

-

49,506

The Society operates in two main geographical areas being New South Wales and Queensland, Australia.

Total assets

49,506

-

-

49,506

(b) Primary reporting format – business segments

2010
Assets
Available for sale financial assets

The Society uses fair value estimation for medium to long-term investments in managed funds. The Society’s managed funds are carried at fair
value which approximates current market value. The Society enters into a range of managed fund portfolios to manage risk in accordance with
our Investment Policy approved by the Board of directors. This policy has been complied with during the year.
The carrying values less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short
term nature. The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated to approximate their carrying values due to the unknown
holding term

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Society makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. There are no estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Includes fundraising, investments, infrastructure costs and unallocated activities that cannot reasonably be allocated to community services or
residential aged care. These activities do not constitute a separate reportable segment.

Geographical segments

2010
Segment revenue
Fundraising income/bequests
Other revenue
Total segment revenue
Segment result (notes (c) (i) (ii))
Income tax expense
Net surplus/(deficit)
Segment assets and liabilities (notes (c) (i) (ii))
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Other segment information
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and
other non current segment assets
Depreciation and amortisation expense

(b) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
In the 2009 financial report, the Society made a significant judgement about the impairment of its available-for-sale financial assets.
The Society follows the guidance of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on determining when an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Society evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost and the financial health of and near term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash
flows.
If the whole decline in fair value below cost was considered significant or prolonged, the Society would have suffered an additional loss of
$2,042,000 in its 2009 financial statements, being the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity on the impaired
available-for-sale financial assets to the statement of comprehensive income. In the 2010 financial year, the fair value of the relevant assets has
continued to increase.

2009
Segment revenue
Fundraising income/bequests
Other revenue
Total segment revenue
Segment result (notes (c) (i) (ii))
Income tax expense
Net surplus/(deficit)
Segment assets and liabilities (notes (c) (i) (ii))
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Other segment information
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and
other non current segment assets
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Residential
aged care

Community
services

Other

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

1,462
1,462
182
182

904
54,325
55,229
3,468
3,468

1,757
8,336
10,093
5,123
5,123

2,661
64,123
66,784
8,773
8,773

2,984
8,681

23,388
1,504

85,271
9,219

111,643
19,404

8
74

2,663
464

1,853
591

4,524
1,129

Residential
aged care

Community
services

Other

Total

$,000

$,000

$,000

$,000

27
9,966
9,993
88
88

1,541
44,016
45,557
1,591
1,591

682
3,648
4,330
(3,845)
(3,845)

2,250
57,630
59,880
(2,166)
(2,166)

6,882
9,177

6,530
3,497

84,900
5,016

98,312
17,690

376

1,111
335

655
645

1,766
1,356
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6 Expenses

(c) Other segment information
(i) Accounting policies
Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the Society as disclosed in note 1(b). Discontinuing operations are
not required to be shown separately for the purposes of the Aged Care Act 1997 and therefore have not been disclosed as a segment.

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

37,889

31,872

(ii) Segment revenue and expenditure

(a) Expenses from continuing operations

Segment revenues and expenses, are those that are directly attributable to a segment and the relevant portion that can be allocated to the segment
on a reasonable basis. Income and expenditure between segments are priced on an ‘arms length’ basis and are eliminated on aggregation.

Salaries and wages

3,297

2,527

(iii) Segment assets and liabilities

Information technology

412

429

Segment assets include all assets used by a segment and consist primarily of operating cash, receivables, property, plant and equipment net of
related provisions. While most of these assets can be directly attributable to individual segments, the carrying amounts of certain assets used
jointly by segments are allocated based on reasonable estimates of usage. Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other creditors, and
employee benefits. Segment assets and liabilities do not include income taxes. Assets and liabilities between segments are priced on an ‘arms
length’ basis and are eliminated on aggregation

Fundraising and communications

985

376

Travel and transport

1,868

1,457

Client and brokerage expenditure

5,708

5,231

Community partners

2,207

2,411

Property and equipment maintenance

3,310

2,595

-

4,485

5 Revenue

Impairment of financial assets
2010

2009

$’000

$’000

45,269
5,272
213
296
36
450
1,702
3,282
56,520

35,057
4,597
162
460
62
616
992
666
42,612

807
2,878
3,685
60,205

646
2,298
2,944
45,556

(a) From continuing operations
Government funding
Client fees and charges
Bequests and legacies
Corporate funding
Treasury funded superannuation
Trusts and foundations (refer to note 23(a))
Fundraising appeals and events (refer to note 23(a))
Other income (refer to note 5(e))

(b) From other revenue
Interest
Managed fund distributions

(c) Restricted grants
Government funding (refer to note 15(c))
Total revenue from continuing operations

60,205

4,880
4,880
50,436

773
617
72
1,462
61,667

4,090
2,424
2,722
208
9,444
59,880

2,500
379
95
69
11
228
3,282

485
18
78
32
53
666

(e) Other income
GoodStart fee for service
Rent
Resident retentions
Reimbursements
Sale of goods
Net profit on sale of property, plant & equipment

Depreciation
Total expenses from continuing operations

1,055

1,088

56,731

52,471

909

7,683

13

142

1

1

(b) Expenses from discontinuing operations
Salaries and wages
Administration expenses
Information technology
Fundraising and communications

-

1

Travel and transport

5

23

Client and brokerage expenditure

134

812

Property and equipment maintenance

144

645

74

268

Depreciation
Total expenses from discontinuing operations (refer to note 9)
Total expenses

(d) From discontinuing operations
Government funding
Client fees and charges
Net profit on sale of assets
Resident retentions
Total revenue from discontinuing operations (refer to note 9)
Total revenue

Administration expenses

1,280

9,575

58,011

62,046

414

593

(c) Surplus before income tax includes the following specific
expenses:
Depreciation
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Total depreciation

715

763

1,129

1,356

1,347

1,081

431

425

21

45

Rental expenses relating to operating leases
Lease payments
Net transfers to provisions
Employee entitlements
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible
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7 Current assets – Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand
Short term deposit

8 Current assets – Trade and other receivables (continued)
2010

2009

$’000

$’000

1,199

778

12,330

10,934

13,529

11,712

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statements.
The Society holds these cash reserves, as they represent part residential contributions held (refer note 9(c)), and government and trust &
foundation funding provided for a specific purpose of $7,462,000(refer note 15(b)). The related expenditure will not occur until a future period
and the Society is restricted in its use of these funds by the terms and conditions of the funding.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

(b) Short term deposit
Deposits are with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia and ANZ. At call account rates were between 2.95% and 4.45% (2009: 2.95% and
7.2%). Term deposit rates are between 3.52% and 6.00% (2009: 3.65% and 7.9%). These deposits have a maturity of 30 to 240 days.

(c) Interest rate risk exposure

$’000

$’000

-

11

3 to 6 months

32

13

Over 6 months

18

25

50

49

2010

2009

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

$’000

$’000

At 1 July

49

159

Provision for write-off recognised during the year

95

-

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible

(21)

(45)

Unused amount reversed

(73)

(65)

50

49

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in ‘community program expenditure’ in the statement of
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The Society’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 2.

8 Current assets – Trade and other receivables
2010

2009

(b) Past due but not impaired

$’000

$’000

As of 30 June 2010 there were no trade receivables that were past due but not impaired.

1,516

782

Provision for impairment of receivables (note (a))

(50)

(49)

Investment Income receivable

494

570

1,968

1,303

364

376

2,332

1,679

Trade receivables

Prepayments

2009

1 to 3 months

(a) Cash at bank and on hand
These are interest bearing cheque accounts with an average rate of 0.99% (2009:1.77%)

2010

(a) Impaired trade receivables
As at 30 June 2010 current trade receivables of the Society with a nominal value of $50,000 (2009 $49,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was $50,000 (2009 $49,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to clients who are in difficult economic situations.
Based on prior years, the Society expects to recover most of the receivable.

(c) Foreign exchange and interest rate risk
Information about the Society’s exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in relation to trade and other receivables is provided in
note 2.

(d) Fair value and credit risk
Due to the short term nature of these receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value.
Refer to note 2 for more information on the risk management policy of the Society.

9 Discontinuing operations
(a) Description
On 19 May 2008 the Society commenced implementing the decision to cease operating its aged care nursing homes and hostels and related
villages. During the 2009 financial year, the Society commenced transition out of all aged care nursing homes and the majority of hostels, with
one remaining at 30 June 2010.
Financial information relating to the discontinuing operations for the year is set out below.
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11 Non-current assets – Other financial assets

(b) Financial performance and cash flow information
The financial performance and cash flow information presented are for the year ended 30 June 2010 and the year ended 30 June 2009.

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

ANZ Executors and Trustees Company Limited

11,079

10,264

MLC (NCIT) Conservative Trust

14,459

13,761

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

Revenue (note 5)

1,462

9,444

At fair value:

Expenses (note 6)

1,280

9,575

Managed funds at the end of the year were invested as follows:

182

(131)

–

–

Surplus (Deficit) from discontinuing operations

182

(131)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

447

2,669

Surplus (Deficit) before income tax
Income tax expense

Other financial assets available for sale

Medium term managed fund investments:

Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities

(5)

6,144

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

(46)

(1,231)

Long-term managed fund investments:

Net (decrease) increase in cash generated by the division

578

7,582

Russell Investment Group

23,968

21,062

At end of year

49,506

45,087

(c) Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

(a) Managed funds

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are:
2010

2009

The medium-term managed fund investments are required to be in excess of or equal to all residential contributions (not already accounted for
in the cash reserves) and new initiatives as informed by the strategic plan. The medium term portfolio is readily realisable.

$’000

$’000

Accounts receivable

1,050

2,932

Property, plant and equipment

1,934

2,009

Total assets

2,984

4,941

(b) Investments in related parties

446

1,060

Refer to note 20 for information on Available for sale financial assets held in related parties

8,034

7,579

201

205

8,681

8,844

(5,697)

(3,903)

Accounts payable
Residential contributions
Provision for employee benefits
Total liabilities
Net (liabilities)/assets

The long-term managed fund investments comprise financial assets that the Society wishes to invest over the long-term, to maintain, or
increase the real value of the total managed fund investments

(c) Non-current assets pledged as security
The Society does not hold any non current assets pledged as security.

(d) Impairment and risk exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the managed funds classified as available for sale.

10 Non-current assets – Receivables
Receivables

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

5,000

-

Managed funds had unrealised gains of $2,844,000 (2009 unrealised losses ($2,042,000)) taken to equity. Realised gains of $204,000 due to
sale of equities, was taken to income.
All available for sale financial assets are denominated in Australian currency. For an analysis of the sensitivity of available for sale financial assets
to price and interest rate risk refer to note 2.

The receivable outstanding at the end of the current year are subordinated and deeply subordinated notes in GoodStart, (refer note 19(b)).

(a) Impaired receivables and receivables past due

2010

2009

$'000

$'000

45,087

51,393

204

-

Movements

None of the non-current receivables are impaired or past due but not impaired.

At beginning of year

(b) Fair values

Realised gains on equity sales

The fair value and carrying value of non-current receivables are as follows:

Reinvestment of distributions

1,371

221

Revaluation (devaluation) - asset available for sale reserve (refer note 15)

2,844

(2,042)

-

(4,485)

49,506

45,087

2010

Receivables

2010

2009

2009

Carrying amount

Fair value

Carrying amount

Fair value

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

5,000

5,000

-

-

(c) Risk exposure
Information about the Society’s exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk is provided in note 2.

Impairment - statement of comprehensive income
At end of year
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12 Non-current assets – Property, plant and equipment

12 Non-current assets – Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Assets in the course of construction

Land

Buildings

Plant and
equipment

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

21,888

13,647

6,030

41,565

-

2,575

150

2,725

21,888

16,222

6,180

44,290

-

2,390

2,134

4,524

0

(249)

(249)

-

(2,575)

(129)

(2,704)

21,888

16,037

7,936

45,861

At 30 June 2010 there was $874,000 (2009 nil) in invoices received but fitout work had not yet commenced, due to delays in leased premises.
The value of the invoices has been included in trade payables (note 13) and in assets in the course of construction as above.

Continuing operations balance as at 1 July 2009

-

(2,598)

(4,074)

(6,672)

Discontinuing operations balance as at 1 July 2009

-

(620)

(96)

(716)

Expenditure of $2,313,000 (2009: $1,514,000) has been recognised for Apartments for Life at Bondi. Expenditure of $1,394,000 (2009:
$182,000) has also been recognised for the fitout of NSW co-location premises in Hurstville, Liverpool, Macquarie Park, Paddington, Penrith,
and Brisbane premises in West End

Balance as at 1 July 2009

-

(3,218)

(4,170)

(7,388)

Disposals

-

-

178

178

Discontinuing operations

-

685

85

770

Depreciation expense

-

(414)

(715)

(1,129)

Continuing operations balance as at 30 June 2010

-

(2,947)

(4,622)

(7,569)

21,888

13,090

3,314

38,292

Land

Buildings

Plant and
equipment

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

23,311

11,589

5,468

40,368

2,771

12,054

1,137

15,962

26,082

23,643

6,605

56,330

Additions

-

866

900

1,766

Disposals

(4,194)

(8,287)

(1,325)

(13,806)

-

(2,575)

(150)

(2,725)

21,888

13,647

6,030

41,565

2010

Gross carrying amount
Continuing operations balance as at 1 July 2009
Discontinuing operations balance as at 1 July 2009
Balance as at 1 July 2009
Additions
Disposals
Discontinuing operations
Continuing operations balance as at 30 June 2010
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value 2010
2009

Gross carrying amount
Continuing operations balance as at 1 July 2008
Discontinuing operations balance as at 1 July 2008
Balance as at 1 July 2008

Discontinuing operations
Continuing operations balance as at 30 June 2009

The carrying amounts of the assets disclosed above include the following expenditure recognised in relation to property, plant and equipment
which is in the course of construction and development:
Land

Plant and
equipment

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

2010

–

3,707

227

3,934

2009

–

1,698

51

1,749

Work in progress: billed in advance

(b) Leased assets
The Society did not have any furniture, fittings and equipment under a finance lease (2009: nil).

(c) Valuations of land and buildings
Land and buildings were deemed at cost as at transition to AIFRS date (1 July 2004). A valuation in May 2008 by RT Golby, and Nelson &
Partner showed recoverable values as greater than carrying values thus an impairment loss did not occur. This valuation was reviewed in 2009
and 2010 for impairment and no change in land and building values was required (refer note 1(f)).
Buildings on crown land are valued at $5,559,000 (2009: $5,559,000). Crown land is valued at nil (2009: nil).

(d) Use of non-current assets
At the end of the financial year the Society’s non-current assets were used for the following purposes:
2010

2009

$’000

$’000

Residential aged care facilities & related villages held for sale (discontinuing operations)

1,934

2,009

Community services (includes women’s and children's programs, aged care community
programs and villages)

5,136

8,272

33,156

26,621

40,226

36,902

Other activities (includes administration offices, information technology, buildings used for
community programs rented on an ‘arms length’ basis and land for redevelopment)

Accumulated depreciation
Continuing operations balance as at 1 July 2008

-

(1,558)

(3,532)

(5,090)

Discontinuing operations balance as at 1 July 2008

-

(2,910)

(880)

(3,790)

Balance as at 1 July 2008

-

(4,468)

(4,412)

(8,880)

Disposals

-

1,843

1,005

2,848

Discontinuing operations

-

620

96

716

Depreciation expense

-

(593)

(763)

(1,356)

Continuing operations balance as at 30 June 2009

-

(2,598)

(4,074)

(6,672)

21,888

11,049

1,956

34,893

Net book value 2009

Buildings

(e) Impairment loss and compensation
There was no impairment loss during the 2010 financial year.

13 Current liabilities – Trade and other payables
2010

2009

$'000

$'000

Trade payables

4,916

3,377

Other payables (a)

2,148

1,827

Unexpended grants: Government, Trust and Foundations

5,117

-

Employee benefits - annual leave

1,939

1,739

260

306

14,380

7,249

Employee benefits - long service leave
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(a) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

15 Reserves and retained surplus (continued)

As at 30 June 2010 there were no trust monies and deposits held in other payables (2009 $124,000) due to discontinued operations. The entire
obligation is presented as current, since the Society does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement. Based on past experience, the
Society does not expect all trust monies to be spent within the next 12 months.

(b) Risk exposure

(ii) Restricted grants reserve

(c) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months
The current employee benefits includes accruals for annual leave. The entire obligation is presented as current, since the Society does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement. However, based on past experience, the Society does not expect all employees to take the full
amount of accrued leave within the next 12 months.
The current employee benefits for long service leave includes all unconditional entitlements where employees have completed the required
period of service and also those where employees are entitled to pro rata payments in certain circumstances. The entire amount is presented as
current, since the Society does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement. However, based on past experience, the Society does not
expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued long service leave or require payment within the next 12 months.

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

110

129

14 Non-current liabilities – Provisions
2010

2009

$’000

$’000

898

808

Balance 30 June 2010

2009

$'000

$'000

(2,042)

-

2,844

(2,042)

802

(2,042)

Transfer to accumulated surplus of restricted grant expenditure during the year
Transfer from accumulated surplus of restricted grants received but unexpended during the
year
Balance 30 June 2010

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Society, directly or
indirectly, during the financial year:
Richard Spencer

Chief Executive Officer

Wendy Miller

Chief Financial Officer

Maree Walk

Operations		

(4,040)

(4,055)

Keith Bryant

Social Initiatives		

Annette Michaux

Social Policy & Research		

-

4,880

Liz Yeo

Human Resources		

6,385

Barbara Squires

Ageing

2,345

The above persons were also key management persons during the year ended 30 June 2009.
76,279

79,270

3,656

(2,166)

Transfer to accumulated surplus of restricted grant expenditure during the year

4,040

4,055

-

(4,880)

83,975

76,279

Balance 30 June 2010

(c) Other key management personnel

5,560

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year
Transfer from accumulated surplus of restricted grants received but unexpended during the
year

(since 14 July 2005)
(since 20 November 2006)
(since 15 March 2005)
(since 15 August 2008)
(since 21 October 1997)
(since 18 August 2008)
(since 9 November 1995 to November 2009)
(since 20 November 2006)
(since 20 March 2001 to August 2009)
(since 15 August 2008)
(since 20 October 1997 to November 2009)
(since 19 July 2010)

6,385

(c) Retained surplus
Balance 1 July 2009

Sam Weiss (President)
Robert Fitzgerald (Vice President)
Tanya Gilerman (Honorary Treasurer)
Rebecca Dee-Bradbury
Margaret M. Hetherton
Joan Lind
Denise G. Lynch
Gary Moore
Julie A. Rosenberg
Justin Ryan
Simone C. Schwarz
Robert Warren

General managers		

(b) Restricted grants reserve
Balance 1 July 2009

(a) Directors

Directors of the Society are not remunerated.
2010

(a) Available for sale financial assets reserve
Revaluation/(devaluation) (refer note 11)

16 Key management personnel disclosures

(b) Directors’ compensation

15 Reserves and retained surplus

Balance 1 July 2009

Restricted grants received in advance from government, major donors, trusts and foundations are recognised when the Society has control of
the contribution. The reserve represents grants received during previous financial years over which the Society was deemed to have control.
The related expenditure the grants are intended to compensate will not occur until a future period and the Society is restricted in its use of these
funds by the terms and conditions of the grant.

The following persons were non-executive directors of the Society during the financial year:

The following amounts reflect leave that is not to be expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

Employee benefits – long service leave

(i) Available for sale financial assets revaluation reserve
Changes in the fair value of managed fund investments classified as available for sale financial assets, are taken to this reserve, as described in
note 1(j).

Information about the Society’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is provided in note 2

Long Service leave obligation expected to be settled after 12 months

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
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(d) Other key management personnel compensation

Short term employee benefits (total compensation)

19 Commitments (continued)
2010

2009

$

$

1,269,046

1,343,043

(c) Repairs and maintenance: property
The Society had no contractual obligation for future repairs and maintenance in existence at the reporting date other than those recognised as
liabilities.

17 Remuneration of auditors

(d) Remuneration commitments

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of the Society, its related practices and non related
audit firms:

The Society had no commitments for the payment of salaries and other remuneration under long-term employment contracts in existence at the
reporting date other than those recognised as liabilities

2010

2009

$

$

20 Related party transactions

(a) Assurance services

(a) Social Ventures Australia

Audit services

The Society is one of four founding members of Social Ventures Australia Limited. Social Ventures Australia Limited is a company limited by
guarantee, incorporated and operating in Australia.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm
Audit of financial reports and other audit work under the Corporations Act 2001

59,500

59,500

In 2010 there were no financial transactions between the Society and Social Ventures Australia Limited (2009: nil)

Review of government grant financial reports

17,000

17,000

Total remuneration for audit services

76,500

76,500

(b) GoodStart

10,000

-

-

5,500

10,000

5,500

(b) Advisory service
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm
Accounting advice in relation to GoodStart
Taxation services
Total remuneration for advisory services

The Society is one of four founding members of GoodStart Childcare Limited and has an economic interest of 28.5%. On 31 May 2010
GoodStart became the owner operator of 570 childcare centres, previously owned by ABC Learning. GoodStart is a company limited by
guarantee, incorporated and operating in Australia.
In 2010 the Society contributed $5,000,000 as a mix of cash and services to GoodStart by way of subordinated and deeply subordinated notes
and has interest receivable of $62,000 at 30 June 2010. The constitution of GoodStart specifically restricts any portion of income or assets from
GoodStart being distributed to any member or director.

(c) Transactions with directors

It is the Society’s practice to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ expertise and experience with the Society are important. These assignments are principally indirect tax advice or
systems advice. It is the Society’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.

Ms Tanya Gilerman and Mr Robert Warren are partners of KPMG Australia. An associate of the Society, GoodStart Childcare Limited engaged
KPMG Australia to perform a specific contract in relation to the purchase of ABC Learning Centres. Ms Gilerman and Mr Warren have declared
their interest and took no part in awarding the contact.

(c) External Audit Policy
It is the Society’s external audit policy to not exceed the ratio of audit work to non-audit work fees of 1:1.

This contract is an arms length transaction and based on normal commercial terms and conditions. The amount of this transaction for
GoodStart Childcare Limited is $4,800,000.

18 Contingencies

(c) Key management personnel

The Society had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2010 in bank guarantees of $563,200 (2009 $563,200) in relation to normal community
operations. The Society had no contingent assets at 30 June 2010.

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 16.

21 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

19 Commitments

There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect, the operations of the Society, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Society in future financial years.

(a) Capital commitments
The Society has no capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date other than those already recognised as liabilities. (2009 nil).

(b) Operating lease commitments
2010

2009

$’000

$’000

Within 1 year

1,555

978

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

5,457

2,366

-

7

7,012

3,351

Commitments in relation to rental of premises contracted for at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities, payable:

Later than 5 years
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22 Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) to net cash inflow
from operating activities

23 Additional information furnished under the
NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the Regulations (continued)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Resident contribution retentions
Managed fund investment Income
Impairment of managed funds

2010

2009

$’000

$’000

3,656

(2,166)

(95)

(275)

(1,953)

(790)

2010

Government grants and subsidies

-

4,485

Client fees

(228)

(2,775)

Bequests and legacies

1,129

1,356

(Surplus) / deficit for the year

668

2,308

(2,500)

100

Other income
Shortfall in funds available from fundraising

(Profit)/loss on sale of non-current assets
Depreciation of non-current assets
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors

6,625

757

(Decrease)/increase in other payables

(1,052)

(375)

88

83

6,338

2,708

(Decrease)/increase in other non-current provisions
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

23 Additional information furnished under the
NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the Regulations

$’000

$’000

450

616

Gross proceeds of fundraising appeals and events

1,702

992

Total proceeds of fundraising (i)

2,152

1,608

(287)

(272)

1,865

1,336

Gross proceeds of fundraising from trusts and foundations

Total direct costs of fundraising appeals and events
Net surplus from fundraising

(b) Statement showing how funds received were applied to charitable purposes

213

162

(3,656)

2,166

3,685

2,944

-

2,722

3,937

1,668

56,146

60,710

(d) Fundraising appeals conducted during the financial year
Direct mail appeals included four to raise money for our child and family services, and two to the general public to reach out to new donors.
In addition we sent out three supporter newsletters, and a donor survey. Special events included the Art and Dreaming dinner in March 2010,
President’s Briefing on the Headland Project, and funds raised by events held by volunteer committees such as the Scarba Volunteers’ Family Fund

2010

$’000

%

$’000

%

287 : 2,152

13

272 : 1,608

17

1,865 : 2,152

87

1,336 : 1,608

83

Total cost of community programs : Total expenditure

47,001 : 58,011

81

44,297 : 62,046

71

Total cost of community programs : Total revenue from continuing activities

47,001 : 60,205

78

44,297 : 50,436

88

Total cost of fundraising : Gross income from fundraising
Net surplus from fundraising : Gross income from fundraising

2009

$’000

$’000

1,865

1,336

This was applied to charitable purposes in the following manner:
47,001

44,297

9,730

8,174

56,731

52,471

1,280

9,575

Total charitable purpose expenditure

58,011

62,046

Shortfall in funds available from fundraising

56,146

60,710

Discontinuing operations expenditure (refer note 9)

7,021

These comparisons and percentages are required to be disclosed under the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the Regulations.
2010

Total cost of community programs

5,889

2010
2009

Administration expenses (i)

$’000

44,027

(e) Fundraising ratios
2010

Community program expenditure

$’000

Net profit on sale of assets

(a) Details of aggregate gross income and expenditure of fundraising appeals

Net surplus from fundraising

2009

46,078

Interest, dividend and managed fund distribution revenue

Decrease/(Increase)in trade debtors
Decrease/(Increase)in non-current receivables

(c) Shortfall of $56,146,000 (2009: $60,710,000) financed from the following sources:

(i) Administration expenses include depreciation, bequest expenditure, and a portion of indirect overheads including Finance, Corporate
Support, Information Technology, Asset Management, Social, Policy & Research, Fundraising and Communications.

24 Going concern
While the Society is in a current net liability position due to the classification of liabilities associated with discontinuing operations as current, the
Society holds sufficient liquid assets and forecasts positive operating cash flows to pay all debts as and when they fall due.
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Directors’
declaration
30 June 2010
In the directors’ opinion:
(a)		

the financial statements and notes set out on pages 18 to 40 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

		

(i)	complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements; and

		

(ii)	giving a true and fair view of the Society’s financial position as at 30 June 2010 and of its performance for the financial year ended
on that date; and

(b)		

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Society will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

S.S. Weiss
Director
Sydney
22 September 2010

Declaration by
Chief Executive Officer
30 June 2010
Declaration by Chief Executive Officer in respect of fundraising appeals
I, Richard Spencer, Chief Executive Officer of The Benevolent Society declare that in my opinion:
(a)	the statement of comprehensive income gives a true and fair view of all income and expenditure of The Benevolent Society with respect
to fundraising appeals; and
(b)

the balance sheet gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs with respect to fundraising appeals; and

(c)	the provisions of the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991, the Regulations under the Act and the conditions attached to the authority
have been complied with; and
(d)	the internal controls exercised by The Benevolent Society are appropriate and effective in accounting for all income received and applied
by The Benevolent Society from all of its fundraising appeals.

R.J. Spencer
Chief Executive Officer
Sydney
22 September 2010
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